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VISIOI'I ] We will always exceed expectations ... with every partner, every day.

Mi S Si on ] To maximize shareowner value by being the best provider

of technology products and services for the world.

Teamwork

Respect
VBlUES ] Accountability

Integrity

Innovation



Ingram Micro Inc. is the largest global wholesale provider of technology products

and services. The company operates in 36 countries with sales of $30.7 billion for
the fiscal year 2000. Ingram Micro’s global regions provide distribution of technology
products and services, market development programs and supply chain management
services to more than 175,000 technology solution providers and 1,700 manufacturers.
The company is focused on maximizing shareowner value and achieving customer

satisfaction through innovation in the information technology supply chain.

O ur s uccess

S ap1ng

2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
(Figures in 000s, except per share data)

Net Sales $ 30,715,149 S 28,068,642 § 22,034,038 $ 16,581,539 $ 12,023,451

Gross Profit 1,556,298 1,336,163 1,391,168 1,085,689 812,384

Income From Operations 353,437 200,004 486,605 376,579 247,508

Net Income 226,173 183,419 245,175 193,640 110,679

Diluted Earnings Per Share S 1.52 S 1.24 S 1.64 S 1.32 S 0.88

Total Assets S 6,608,982 S 8,271,927 S 6,733,404 S 4,932,151 S 3,366,947

Total Debt ") 545,618 1,348,135 1,720,456 1,141,131 304,033

Total Stockholders’ Equity 1,874,392 1,966,845 1,399,257 1,038,206 825,150

(Mincludes long-term debt, convertible debentures and current maturities of long-term debt, but excludes off-balance sheet debt.
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shaping our future

INGRAM MICRO

Dear Shareowners,

If I could sum up the year 2000 in one word, it would be execution. We delivered net income of $226
million or $1.52 per diluted share compared to $183 million or $1.24 per diluted share in 1999,
demonstrating substantial progress in our march toward improved profitability and shareowner returns.

As we began the year, we faced a challenging business environment. Alterations to manufacturers’
terms and conditions, combined with a price war among our competitors, had caused dramatic changes
in our industry during 1999. The resulting turmoil forced many companies to cease or reduce
operations. Ingram Micro, however, saw an opportunity to make the changes work for us rather than
against us. As the market leader, we assumed responsibility for turning the industry around to achieve
long-term profitability.

Our primary objective for the year was to lead the industry in gross margin improvement, and we
delivered. We increased gross margin 76 basis points from the end of the first quarter to the final
quarter of the year — a feat previously unheard of in our industry. By working closely with both our
customers and IT manufacturer partners, we re-established the value of our services in the marketplace.
This achievement clearly demonstrates the importance our partners place on our capabilities.

At the same time, several factors constrained our net sales growth in 2000. First, we shifted our global
focus to increasing profitability and altered our pricing strategies, knowing the market reaction would
impact sales growth. Second, in our European region, currencies were weaker and growth in demand for
IT products was less than in 1999. Finally, in the fourth quarter of 2000, demand for IT products
declined significantly in the United States. In spite of these challenges, we are proud to report that our

net sales grew 9 percent to $30.7 billion for the year (13 percent when adjusted for European currencies).
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Even with this level of net sales growth, we delivered an operating profit increase of 77 percent to
$353 million in 2000. This dramatic improvement shows the power of increasing gross margins to affect
our operating profit. The actions we took advanced the company in its continuous goal to drive profitable
growth and increase return on invested capital.

Our intense focus on reducing working capital needs throughout the year also had a significant
positive effect on our financial results. By turning inventory faster and managing our payables and
receivables to consistent levels, we reduced our debt and interest expense. We decreased inventory 16
percent and cut our total debt — including on- and off-balance-sheet debt — 10 percent from year-end
1999. With our reduced debt and current financing capacity, we are a strong financial ally for customers

and suppliers alike. And, more importantly, we have ample financial resources to support future growth.

Building On Our Strengths

More than two decades of experience have positioned Ingram Micro to set the pace for global IT
distribution. As the industry leader, we offer a broader selection of products and services in more
geographic locations — and deliver them to our customers with more speed and precision — than any
other broad-line distributor.

In 2000, we extended our lead with important advances. The following activities have helped us
enhance our service and efficiency levels while nurturing long-term relationships up and down the IT
industry supply chain:

* Added new products and services to meet the needs of the dynamic, fast-paced IT market

* Expanded our facilities and enhanced them with the latest logistics technology

* Rolled out e-commerce capabilities globally to increase customer service and improve

operating efficiency

* Launched a new division in the United States, IM-Logistics, that allows us to explore new markets

with minimal investment by leveraging our core logistics competency

* Continued to align our business and integrate our processes more closely with our customers

and suppliers

Setting Clear Direction
Ingram Micro’s worldwide executive team (see photo on Page 5) was a key factor in driving our

success throughout 2000. Thanks to their efforts, associate satisfaction and retention improved

INGRAM MICRO
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setting clear direction

INGRAM MICRO

significantly, increasing the effectiveness of our workforce and enhancing overall company performance.
These leaders provide clear vision and stability in our organization. It is an honor to work with them.
Two key executive positions were added this year. Michael ]J. Grainger was promoted from chief
financial officer to president and chief operating officer. Guy P. Abramo, who most recently served as our
chief information officer, became the first chief strategy and information officer in our company’s
history. These appointments further strengthen our management team and enable Mike and Guy to use

their abilities to the fullest.

Looking Ahead

We are proud of our achievements in 2000 — but our work has just begun. In 2001, we will focus on
two objectives to drive our global operations. The first objective is to achieve the lowest cost structure
in the IT distribution industry. The second is to deliver more measurable value to our customers than our
competitors. We have set our targets high to strive for the best and continuously extend our advantage
in the marketplace.

To support these objectives, we have identified specific goals that will enable us to drive cost out of
our business and increase IT supply-chain efficiency while improving the quality, product selection and
service levels we provide our customers. Though our first priority is lowering cost, we also must focus
on increasing our market share and continuing the progress we made in gross margin gains based on our
demonstrated value.

Armed with an in-depth understanding of market drivers and customer needs, we are continuing to
develop products and services for the new millennium. As you will see in the following pages, our work
in emerging markets, e-commerce, logistics management and outsourcing places us firmly at the
forefront of our industry.

The power to shape the future of technology distribution lies in our hands — and there is no company
more qualified to wield that power. By focusing on leadership, innovation and profitability, we will meet

the challenge. I'look forward to sharing the benefits of our success with you.

Ked ke

Kent Foster
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer



Worldwide Executive Team] Kent B. Foster Chairman and Chief Exccutive Officer
Michael ). Grainger President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Guy P. Abramo Executive Vice President and Chief Strategy and Information Officer

Kevin M. Murai Executive Vice President and President, Ingram Micro U.S.

Gregory M. E. Spierkel Executive Vice President and President, Ingram Micro Europe
James E. Anderson, Jr. Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel

Asger Falstrup Senior Vice President and President, Ingram Micro Canada

David M. Finley Senior Vice President, Human Resources

Henri T. Koppen Senior Vice President and President, Ingram Micro Asia-Pacific
Jorge G. Reyes Vice President and Acting President, Ingram Micro Latin America

See inside back cover for photo map.
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what shapes the future?

INGRAM MICRO

For an individual, it may be the inspiring example of a successful friend or relative. For a group,
the guidance of a powerful, charismatic leader. For an industry, a single company with the vision and
experience to recognize which way the market is heading and adapt its business accordingly.

In the technology distribution industry, that company is Ingram Micro. Two decades ago, we began
constructing a powerful logistics machine that has enabled us to become the world’s largest distributor of
technology products and services. We’ve refined and enhanced this infrastructure throughout the years.
Now, it is the foundation for delivering products from more than 1,700 hardware and software manufac-
turers to 175,000 solution providers in 100-plus countries around the world. Our customers’ overwhelm-
ingly positive feedback shows we do it better than anyone else. Yet, in spite of these successes, we haven’t
become complacent. Instead, we continue to grow and develop with the people we serve, strategically

expanding our capacity, fine-tuning our operations and creating services to fulfill their evolving requirements.

The Ingram Micro Difference

Our willingness to work with our partners in the way that best suits them is a key factor that
differentiates us from other distributors. Because we take the time to listen to our partners, we under-
stand their needs better than anyone else. The strategies we create to meet those needs show our entire
industry the way to go forward.

And Ingram Micro does more than react to market trends —— we anticipate and capitalize upon
them. We lead our industry in bringing such emerging technologies as computer-telephony integra-
tion, high-end storage, networking and Internet security to market. With an array of electronic tools,
including Web sites in 29 countries, solution provider communities, direct electronic communication
links and other purchasing systems, we set a global e-commerce example for other IT distributors to
follow. Our logistics machine lets us serve our customers with unprecedented speed and accuracy. Plus,
we are at the forefront of the mass movement toward logistics outsourcing.

The fact is, Ingram Micro isn’t just prepared for the future of technology distribution. We're

defining it.



The strategies

Ingram Micro creates

lead our industry to

the future.



[ Ingram Micro executives Ke]]y Johnson, And}' Magsari]i, Camille Alvarez, Mayra Victoria ]

and Jim Jensen meet to set strategic direction for new products and services.

INGRAM MICRO | .07



.08

seizing new opportunities

INGRAM MICRO

In technology, emerging markets are where the shape of the future can be seen — and no one sees
it more clearly than Ingram Micro. Throughout our history, we’ve proven that we have the knowledge
and expertise to identify new markets and technologies early in their lifecycles. Whether an opportunity
is technology- or customer-driven, we’re first on the scene, providing information and services to help

our partners take advantage of it.

Focus And Foresight

How do we stay a step ahead? It’s easy: Our company is designed to gather and process information
from multiple sources. Through research, customer interactions and partnerships with manufacturers,
we learn about new technologies and up-and-coming markets. We pinpoint those with the greatest
potential for profitable growth and end-user demand, then develop go-to-market programs to capitalize
on them. Because our connections span the industry, our ability to recognize trends is vast. Our reach

covers many market segments and product categories.

Driving The Information Revolution

Nowhere is this more apparent than in the area of communication. As the world becomes more and
more connected through the Internet, new technologies keep springing up to meet market demand. In
addition to expanding within the business arena, networks are penetrating homes. Wireless and handheld
devices are enabling instant connectivity from remote locations. High-end storage solutions are being
created to handle the massive amounts of data people can now exchange. In the midst of it all is
Ingram Micro, facilitating the transfer of products and information from manufacturers to solution
providers to customers in diverse market segments. And the stream flows both ways: When solution
providers tell us what their customers want and need, we pass that knowledge on to our manufacturer
partners so they can fine-tune the solutions they offer.

In 2001, as always, we will remain dedicated to anticipating, recognizing and leading industry trends.
It’s a philosophy that will keep us as competitive tomorrow as we are today, no matter how quickly our

industry changes.



Ingram Micro sees

the shape of the

future 1n emerging

technology markets.




Ingram Micro p]a)’s a ke}' role in getting emerging tcchno[ogies, such as

wireless emergency communication, into the markets that need them.
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changing the face of e-commerce

Since its introduction in the 1990s, e-commerce has reshaped the world’s economy in unprece-
dented ways. At the outset, some thought this new purchasing option would render distributors obso-
lete — but Ingram Micro knew better. Instead, we recognized e-commerce as an opportunity to enhance

and expand our customer relationships. Here’s how we’ve molded the technology to fit our business.

Web Of Success

As one of the world’s largest business-to-business (B2B) providers, we rely on electronic methods
to help our customers order quickly, easily and cost-effectively. In fact, our customers purchased
$8 billion in products and services electronically in 2000, representing more than 25 percent of our
global sales. And the number is growing — e-commerce sales increased 46 percent compared to 1999.

2000 was also a year in which we greatly enhanced and expanded our e-commerce offering around
the world. We rolled out new e-commerce sites in nine countries within Asia and Latin America and in
our Miami export division. Plus, we upgraded existing sites in Australia, Canada, Chile, Mexico, the
United States and 11 European nations, boosting performance and incorporating sophisticated transac-

tion capabilities.

Tools As Diverse As Customers’ Needs

With www. ingrammicro.com and other e-commerce systems, Ingram Micro enhances communica-
tion and improves supply-chain efficiencies for partners throughout the distribution channel. Smaller
companies enjoy the benefits of round-the-clock self-service purchasing. Large corporations and
Internet retailers plug their own order-management systems directly into ours to complete transactions
quickly and accurately. Solution providers of all sizes use our online communities, www.venturetech-
network.com and www.partnershipamerica.com, to capitalize on opportunities in the small to midsize
business and government/education markets.

Far from replacing Ingram Micro, e-commerce strengthens us by increasing the level of service we
offer. The further we integrate electronic tools into our business, the more we ensure our place in the

new economy — and the better we position ourselves for the future.
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Our customers

purchased 38 billion
In products and services

electronically in 2000.



[ A solution provider checks prices, places orders and tracks ]

his shipments at www.ingrammicro.com.
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forging a stronger supply chain

When your core business is distribution, one thing is certain: If you can’t deliver, you won’t succeed.
Ingram Micro delivers — and with 20 years’ experience and world-class logistics capabilities, we do it
better than anyone else. Solution providers simply order what they need from our selection of more than
280,000 products and services, then relax, secure in the knowledge that their shipments will arrive on
time and in the place they’ve chosen. In many cases (more than 75 percent of orders within the United

States) we ship directly to the solution provider’s customer, improving service and saving time and money.

A Mighty Machine

We accomplish all this through our worldwide network of 48 distribution centers, which provide
coverage in the United States, Canada, Mexico, and multiple countries in the European, Latin America
and Asia-Pacific regions. Each center within a country is connected to a standard order-management
system, allowing us to fill and send orders quickly and accurately. To ensure quality of service, all our
United States facilities, as well as several locations in Canada, Mexico, Europe and India, adhere to ISO
9002 distribution standards. These standards are set by the Geneva, Switzerland-based International

Organization For Standardization and are considered the “gold seal” that marks superior business practices.

New Opportunities

We are targeting new trends in our industry to leverage these logistics capabilities in new ways.
For example, solution providers no longer find it cost-effective to maintain inventory. Manufacturers
prefer to save their resources for product development and customer service. Both agree that outsourc-
ing is the ideal solution.

Enter Ingram Micro. From contract warehousing to customized packaging to custom configuration
to shipping, we provide the outsourcing services businesses need to run efficiently and focus on their
core competencies within the value chain. Because we use our existing facilities to do this, we are able
to form partnerships and expand into new markets with little risk. The result: We position ourselves
as a one-stop source for IT products and related services, and as a leader in the distribution landscape

of the future.
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We are the

supply chain engine

to the technology

industry.



Ingram Micro cust

for

tly processes

efficien
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According to many industry experts, increasing integration of manufacturers’, solution providers’
and distributors’ roles is the trend of the future. Ingram Micro agrees. That’s why we’re a leader in devel-
oping outsourcing programs to enhance and expand our relationships with our partners.

Manufacturers can outsource all their logistics and fulfillment functions to us or purchase individual
fee-based services. We also offer procurement, stocking and custom-shipping services to solution
providers as a value-added service within our core distribution business. Our partners escape the need
to manage time-consuming tasks. We increase our revenue and enhance our customer relationships. It’s

a healthy business model for all parties.

Technology’s Back Room

The proof of our outsourcing skills lies in the many partnerships we’ve won — more than
any other IT distributor. For example, in Denmark and North America, we deliver procurement,
logistics and configuration services for a leading solutions provider. A major software manufacturer
relies on us to manage its retail logistics operations in Canada and the United States. Plus, we hold a
contract to build consumer PCs for a top systems manufacturer’s European division.

And our outsourcing services aren’t limited to traditional brick-and-mortar establishments. We're
also the enabling force behind e-commerce enterprises worldwide. We provide fulfillment and logistics
services for Dell Computer’s third-party product sales. We fulfill Web orders for Future Shop Ltd.,
Canada’s largest retailer of computers, home electronics and entertainment media. Other significant
e-commerce partners include 3Com.com and Computers4SURE.com. What’s the common element in
all these relationships? Transparency. Because fulfillment is seamless, our partners enjoy the benefits of

our fast, accurate delivery.

Our Evolving Business
We’re defining the shape of technology distribution’s future by creating a model for others to
emulate. By doing so, we take our place as an indispensable part of the IT industry, now and for years

to come.



We are the first

distributor to offer

complete outsourcing

services.



With Ingram Micro’s transparent ]ogistics services, our manufacturer paz‘tners’

shipments are delivered quickly and efficiently to their ultimate customers.
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The Leader In
Technology Distribution

Any company can call itself visionary — it’s not hard to imagine the bright possibilities the future

holds. More rare by far is a company solid and knowledgeable enough to make its vision a reality.

Ingram Micro is just such a company. We recognize technology’s growing importance in the
world economy; and, going forward, we’ll continue to play a key role in helping the technology
industry reach its potential. At the same time, we’ll drive toward our own goals of maximizing
profitability, bringing the latest products and services to market, and finding new ways to bring value

to our customers.
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Selected consolidated financial data

The following table presents selected consolidated financial data of Ingram Micro Inc. (“Ingram Micro”or the “Company”).The
information set forth below should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations”and the historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, included elsewhere in this Annual
chort to Shareowners.

The fiscal year of the Company is a 52- or 53-weck period ending on the Saturday nearest to December 31.References below
to 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 represent the fiscal years ended December 28,1996 (52 wecks), January 3, 1998 (53 weeks),
January 2, 1999 (52 weeks), January 1, 2000 (52 weeks), and December 30,2000 (52 weeks), respectively.

Fiscal Year
(Dollars in 000s, except per share data) 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
Selected Operating Information
Net sales $ 30,715,149 S 28,068,642 $ 22,034,038 $ 16,581,539  § 12,023,451
Gross profit 1,556,298 1,336,163 1,391,168 1,085,689 812,384
Income from operations 353,437 200,004 486,605 376,579 247,508
Income before income taxes,
minority interest and
extraordinary item 362,509 290,493 406,860 326,489 196,757
Income before extraordinary item 223,753 179,641 245,175 193,640 110,679
Net income 226,173 183,419 245,175 193,640 110,679
Basic earnings per share —
income before extraordinary item 1.54 1.25 1.76 1.43 0.99
Diluted earnings per share —
income before extraordinary item 1.51 1.21 1.64 1.32 0.88
Basic earnings per share — net income 1.55 1.28 1.76 1.43 0.99
Diluted earnings per share — net income 1.52 1.24 1.64 1.32 0.88
Basic weighted average
common shares outstanding 145,213,882 143,404,207 139,263,810 135,764,053 112,285,058
Diluted weighted average
common shares outstanding 148,640,991 147,784,712 149,537,870 146,307,532 125,436,376
Selected Balance Sheet Information
Cash $ 150560 § 128,152 § 96,682 $ 92212 $ 48,279
Total assets 6,608,982 8,271,927 6,733,404 4,932,151 3,366,947
Total debt ™ 545,618 1,348,135 1,720,456 1,141,131 304,033
Stockholders” equity 1,874,392 1,966,845 1,399,257 1,038,206 825,150

() Includes long-term debt, convertible debentures and current maturities of long-term debt, but excludes off-balance sheet debt.

I8 | INGRAM MICRO



Management’s discussion and analysis ] of financial condition and results of operations

In evaluating the business of Ingram Micro, readers should carefully consider the important factors discussed in Exhibit 99.01
to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30,2000 “Cautionary Statements for the
Purpose of the ‘Safe Harbor’ Provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.”

Overview

Ingram Micro is the leading distributor of information technology products and services worldwide. The Company’s net sales
grew to $30.7 billion in 2000 from $12.0 billion in 1996.The growth reflects substantial expansion of the Company’s existing
operations, resulting from the integration of numerous acquisitions worldwide, growth in the information technology products
and services distribution industry in general, the addition of new customers, increased sales to the existing customer base, as well

as the addition of new product categories and suppliers.

The information technology products and services distribution industry in which the Company operates is characterized by
narrow gross margins and narrow income from operations as a percentage of net sales (“operating margin”) that have declined
industry-wide in recent years. Prior to 2000,the Company’s gross profit as a percentage of net sales (“gross margin”) declined
to 4.8% in 1999 from 6.8% in 1996 with sequential declines in gross margin each of these years. Initially, the margin decline was
caused by intense price competition;later however, changes in vendor terms and conditions, including, but not limited to, signifi-
cant reductions in vendor rebates and incentives,tighter restrictions on the Company’s ability to return inventory to vendors,and
reduced time periods qualifying for price protection, exacerbated the decline and constrained gross margin improvements. The
Company expects these competitive pricing pressures and the more restrictive vendor terms and conditions to continue in the
foreseeable future. The Company has implemented and continues to refine changes to its pricing strategies,inventory management
processes, and administration of vendor subsidized programs. In addition, the Company continues to change certain of the terms
and conditions offered to its customers to reflect those being imposed by its vendors. In fiscal year 2000,the Company recorded
its first sequential improvement in gross margin in the five-year period from 1996 to 2000, reaching 5.1% as compared to 4.8%
in 1999, primarily as a result of these initiatives.

To partially offset the decline in gross margins, the Company has continually instituted operational and expense controls that
have reduced selling, general, and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales (“SG&A”) to 3.9% in 2000 from 4.7% in
1996, reflecting more effective cost control measures, streamlined processes, and the benefit of greater economies of scale.
However, these reductions have not fully offset past declines in gross margin and, if any future reductions in gross margins were

to occur, there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to reduce SG&A commensurately.

In December 1998, the Company purchased 2,972,400 shares of common stock of SOFTBANK Corp. (“Softbank”), Japan’s
largest distributor of software, peripherals and networking products,for approximately $50.3 million. During December 1999,
the Company sold 1,040,400 shares or approximately 35% of its original investment in Softbank common stock for approximately
$230.1 million resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $201.3 million, net of related expenses. In January 2000, the Company
sold an additional 445,800 shares or approximately 15% of its original holdings in Softbank common stock for approximately
$119.2 million, net of expenses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $111.5 million.The Company used the proceeds from
this sale to repay existing indebtedness. During April 2000, Softbank effected a 3 for 1 stock split.All Softbank share information
has been adjusted to give retroactive effect to Softbank’s stock split.

The information technology products and services distribution business is capital-intensive. The Company’s business requires
significant levels of working capital to finance accounts receivable and product inventory that are not financed by trade creditors.
The Company has relied heavily on debt financing for its increasing working capital needs resulting from organic growth and
acquisitions. In March 2000, the Company completed a new 5-year accounts receivable securitization program in the U.S.,which
provides for the issuance of up to $700 million in commercial paper. This new program adds to the Company’s existing accounts
receivable facilities,which provide additional financing capacity of approximately $310 million.As of December 30, 2000, approxi-
matcly $910 million of accounts receivable were sold under these programs. The Company also has rcvolving credit facilities of

approximately $1.65 billion, as well as additional facilities of approximately $750 million.As of December 30,2000, borrowings
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Management’s discussion and analysis ] continucd

of $325.6 million were outstanding under the revolving credit and additional facilities. In addition,on June 9, 1998,the Company
sold $1.33 billion aggregate principal amount at maturity of its Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures due 2018 in a private
placement. The Company subsequently registered the resale of these debentures with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) and thcy are now gcncrally saleable under Rule 144. Gross proceeds from this offcring were $460.4 million.In 2000 and
1999, the Company repurchased Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures with a total carrying value of $235.2 million and
$56.5 million, respectively, as of their repurchase dates for approximately $231.3 million and $50.3 million in cash, respectively.
The debenture repurchases resulted in an extraordinary gain, net of income taxes, of $2.4 million and $3.8 million in 2000 and
1999, respectively. The Company’s interest expense for a substantial portion of its existing, as well as any future, indebtedness will

be subject to fluctuations in interest rates which may cause fluctuations in the Company’s net income.

Results of operations
The following table sets forth the Company’s net sales by geographic region (excluding intercompany sales), and the percent-

age of total net sales represented thereby, for each of the periods indicated.

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998

(Dollars in millions)

Net Sales by Geographic Region:

United States $ 18,452 60.1% S 16,814 59.9% $ 14,393 65.3%
Europe 7,472 243 7,344 26.2 5,624 25.5
Other international 4,791 15.6 3,911 13.9 2,017 9.2
Total $ 30,715 100.0% $ 28,069 100.0% $ 22,034 100.0%

The following table sets forth certain items from the Company’s consolidated statement of income as a percentage of net sales,

for each of the periods indicated.
Percentage of Net Sales

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998

Net sales 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of sales 94.9 95.2 93.7
Gross profit 5.1 4.8 6.3
Expenses:

SG&A expenses 3.9 4.0 4.1

Reorganization costs = 0.0 =
Income from operations 1.2 0.8 2.2
Other (income) expense, net (0.0) (0.3) 0.4
Income before income taxes

and extraordinary item 1.2 1.1 1.8
Provision for income taxes 0.5 0.4 0.7
Income before extraordinary item 0.7 0.7 1.1
Extraordinary item 0.0 0.0 =
Net income 0.7% 0.7% 1.1%
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2000 compared to 1999
Consolidated net sales increased 9.4% to $30.7 billion in 2000 from $28.1 billion in 1999.The increase in worldwide net sales
was primarily attributable to growth in overall demand for technology products, the addition of new customers, increased sales to

the existing customer base, and expansion of the Company’s product and service offerings.

Net sales from U.S. operations increased 9.7% to $18.5 billion in 2000 from $16.8 billion in 1999 primarily due to growth
in demand for technology products and expansion of the Company’s product and service offerings. The sales growth in U.S. opera-
tions,however, was moderated,especially in the second quarter of 2000, compared to historical sales growth primarily due to
pricing policy changes implemented in the same quarter and the Company’s decision to eliminate certain vendor programs. Both
decisions were geared towards the improvement of gross margin.In addition, towards the end of 2000, the demand for information
technology products and services softened in the U.S. consistent with the slowing of the U.S. economy. This softness in U.S. sales
has continued to date and may continue and/or worsen for the next several quarters. Net sales from European operations grew
approximately 16.1% in local currencies in 2000, but when converted to U.S.dollars, net sales only increased by 1.7% to $7.5
billion in 2000 from $7.3 billion in 1999 as a result of weaker European currencies compared to the U.S.dollar. The sales growth,
in local currency, reflects overall growth in European operations, but was negatively affected by the softness in demand for technology
products and services. For geographic regions outside the U.S. and Europe (“Other International”), net sales increased 22.5% to
$4.8 billion in 2000 from $3.9 billion in 1999 primarily due to the growth in the Company’s Asia Pacific and Latin American
operations. The Company’s Canadian operations, however, experienced only moderate sales growth in 2000 as compared to the
Asia Pacific and Latin American operations primarily due to the overall softness in demand for technology products and services
in the Canadian market in the first half of the year, and lower than anticipated purchases by the Canadian government in the first
quarter of 2000.The Canadian government purchases are generally strong in the first quarter of each year as this coincides with
the Canadian government’s fiscal year-end.

Gross margin increased to 5.1% in 2000 from 4.8% in 1999.The improvement in the gross margin percentage was primarily
due to pricing policy changes initiated during the second quarter of 2000 to more appropriately reflect the value and related costs
of services provided to the Company’s customers, partially offset by the impact of changes in vendor terms and conditions including,
but not limited to, significant reductions in vendor rebates and incentives,tighter restrictions on the Company’s ability to return
inventory to vendors, and reduced time periods qualifying for price protection.The Company has implemented and continues to
refine changes to its pricing strategies, inventory management processes, and administration of vendor subsidized programs. In
addition, the Company continues to change certain of the terms and conditions offered to its customers to reflect those being
imposed by its vendors. Management believes gross margins in early 2001 may decline sequentially from the seasonally high fourth
quarter of 2000; however, it expects actions taken in 2000 as well as its continued focus on gross margin improvement will result
in moderate year-over-year improvements overall in 2001.As the Company continues to seck profitable growth through its pricing
policy changes made to date, and through future pricing policy changes, if any, it may experience moderated sales growth in the
near term.Additionally, no assurances can be given that the Company will be successful in its efforts to maintain and improve
gross margin.

Total SG&A expenses increased 7.8% to $1.2 billion in 2000 from $1.1 billion in 1999, but decreased as a percentage of net
sales to 3.9% in 2000 from 4.0% in 1999. The increase in SG&A spending was attributable to increased expenses required to support
the growth of the Company’s business. Expenses related to expansion consist of incremental personnel and support costs,lease
expenses related to new operating facilities, and the expenses associated with the development and maintenance of information
systems. The overall decrease in SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales is attributable to economies of scale from greater sales
volume, and continued cost-control measures. As noted above, demand for information technology products and services in the
U.S. has recently softened, which may lead to tempered and/or negative sales growth in the U.S. for the next several quarters and
a resulting increase in SG&A expenses as a percentage of net sales in the near term.The Company continues to pursue and imple-
ment process improvements and organizational changes to create sustainable cost reductions without sacrificing customer service

over the long-term.
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In 1999, the Company recorded a Charge of $20.3 million related to reorganization efforts primarily in the Company’s u.s.
and European operations. The Company did not incur any reorganization charges in 2000.

Income from operations, excluding reorganization costs,increased as a percentage of net sales to 1.2% in 2000 from 0.8%
in 1999.The increase in income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, as a percentage of net sales is primarily due to
the increase in gross margin as described above. U.S. income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, as a percentage of
net sales increased to 1.5% in 2000 from 0.9% in 1999, primarily as a result of gross margin improvements. European income
from operations,excluding reorganization costs, as a percentage of net sales increased to 0.7% in 2000 compared to 0.3% in 1999
also as a result of gross margin improvements. Other International income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, as a
percentage of net sales decreased to 0.5% in 2000 from 1.0% in 1999.The decrease in income from operations as a percentage of
net sales for Other International was primarily related to the Asia Pacific operations,which experienced a loss from operations as

the Company continues to invest in infrastructure and refine its business processes in this developing market.

Other (income) expense consisted primarily of interest, foreign currency exchange losses,gains on sales of available-for-sale
securities,and fees associated with the Company’s accounts receivable facilities. In 2000,the Company recorded net other income
of $9.1 million, compared to $90.5 million in 1999.The decrease in other income is primarily attributable to the lower gain real-
ized on the sale of Softbank common stock in 2000 compared to 1999.In December 1999, the Company sold 1,040,400 shares or
approximately 35% of its original investment in Softbank common stock for a pre-tax gain of approximately $201.3 million,net of
related costs. In January 2000, the Company sold an additional 445,800 shares or approximately 15% of its original holdings in
Softbank common stock for a pre-tax gain of approximately $§111.5 million, net of related costs. The decrease in interest expense
was due to the decrease in the average borrowings outstanding in 2000 compared to 1999 resulting from improved working capital
management,the use of proceeds received from the sale of Softbank common stock in December 1999 and January 2000 to repay
existing indebtedness, and an increase in the utilization of the Company’s accounts receivable facilities, partially offset by an
increase in interest rates for the same period. The increase in other expenses was attributable to the increase in fees related to
increased capacity and utilization of the Company’s accounts receivable facilities. Management continues to focus on improving
utilization of working capital to reduce or moderate debt levels in relation to revenue growth.Despite these efforts, a substantial
portion of the Company’s existing credit facilities have variable interest rate terms and therefore net interest expense in future

periods may fluctuate.

The provision for income taxes, excluding extraordinary items, increased 25.2% to $138.8 million in 2000 from $110.9
million in 1999, reflecting the 24.8% increase in the Company’s income before income taxes. The Company’s effective tax rate

remained relatively consistent at 38.3% in 2000 compared to 38.2% in 1999.

In 2000 and 1999,the Company repurchased Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures with a total carrying value of
$235.2 and $56.5 million, respectively, as of their repurchase dates for approxirnately $231.3 million and $50.3 million in cash,
respectively. The debentures repurchased resulted in an extraordinary gain of $2.4 million and $3.8 million in 2000 and 1999,

respectively, net of $1.5 million and $2.4 million in income taxes, respectively.

1999 compared to 1998

Consolidated net sales increased 27.4% to $28.1 billion in 1999 from $22.0 billion in 1998.The increase in worldwide net
sales was primarily attributable to overall growth in the demand for technology products, the addition of new customers, increased
sales to the existing customer base, and the expansion of the Company’s product and service offerings. Net sales also increased as a
result of the January 1999 acquisition of Electronic Resources,Ltd. (‘ERL”) in the Asia Pacific region and the July 1998 acquisition
of Munich, Germany-based Macrotron AG (“Macrotron”).

Net sales from U.S. operations increased 16.8% to $16.8 billion in 1999 from §14.4 billion in 1998 primarily due to growth
of its current business. Net sales from European operations increased 30.6% to $7.3 billion in 1999 from $5.6 billion in 1998 due
to the overall growth in the Company’s existing European operations and the acquisition of Macrotron in July 1998. Other
International net sales increased 93.9% to $3.9 billion in 1999 from $2.0 billion in 1998 due to the acquisition of ERL and growth

in the Company’s Canadian and Latin American operations.
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Gross margin decreased to 4.8% in 1999 from 6.3% in 1998.The significant decline in the margin was primarily due to
reduced vendor rebates and incentives and intense price competition in the U.S.and in the larger countries in Europe. The decline
was exacerbated by excess capacity in the information technology products and services distribution industry. In addition,during
1999, the Company recorded substantially highcr expenses totaling approxirnatcly $94 .8 million related to excess and obsolete
inventory as compared to $26.1 million for 1998.The higher excess and obsolete inventory provisions primarily resulted from the
rapid changes experienced in the technology marketplace and the significant changes in vendor terms and conditions during 1999.
Also, in the fourth quarter of 1999, the Company recorded additional expenses to cost of sales totaling approximately $53.6 million
related to estimated losses from vendor incentive and subsidy programs. The estimated losses on vendor incentive and subsidy pro-
grams primarily originated from recent dramatic changes in the terms and conditions for reimbursements of customer rebates and
competitive price programs by the Company’s major personal computer suppliers. The majority of these higher provisions related
to inventory and vendor programs in the U.S. region with some in the European region.In response to these issues, the Company
has implemented changes to and continually refines its pricing strategies,terms and conditions offered to its customers,inventory
management processes, and administration of vendor subsidized programs.

Total SG&A expenses increased 23.4% to $1.1 billion in 1999 from $0.9 billion in 1998, but decreased as a percentage of
net sales to 4.0% in 1999 from 4.1% in 1998.The increase in SG&A spending was attributable in part to the acquisition of ERL
in January 1999, and the full-year impact of the acquisition of Macrotron in July 1998. In addition, during fiscal year 1999, the
Company recorded significantly higher bad debt expense of approximately $75.8 million or 0.27% as a percentage of net sales as
compared to fiscal year 1998 expense of approximately $32.5 million or 0.15% as a percentage of net sales. The larger bad debt
provision was primarily the result of negotiations with several large customers principally in the area of unauthorized product
returns. SG&A also increased to support the expansion of the Company’s business. Expenses related to expansion consisted of
incremental personnel and support costs, lease expenses related to new operating facilities, and expenses associated with the
development and maintenance of information systems. The overall decrease in SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales is attribut-
able to economies of scale from greater sales volume and continued cost-control measures, but was moderated by the higher bad

debt expenses.

In February 1999, the Company initiated a plan, primarily in the U.S., but also in Europe, to streamline operations and
reorganize resources to increase flexibility and service and maximize cost savings and operational efficiencies. This reorganization
plan included several organizational and structural changes, including the closing of the Company’s California-based consolidation
center and certain other redundant locations; realignment of the Company’s sales force and the creation of a product management
organization that integrates purchasing, vendor services, and product marketing functions;as well as a realignment of administrative
functions and processes throughout the U.S.organization. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 1999 further organizational and
strategic changes were implemented in the Company’s assembly and custom-configuration operations,including the selection of an
outsource partner to produce unbranded systems and the reallocation of resources to support the Company’s custom-configuration

services capabilities.

In connection with these reorganization efforts,the Company recorded a charge of $20.3 million for the fiscal year ended
January 1, 2000.The reorganization chargc included $12.3 million in cmploycc termination benefits for approximatcly 597
employees, $6.4 million for the write-off of software used in the production of unbranded systems, $1.3 million for closing and
consolidation of redundant facilities relating primarily to excess lease costs net of estimated sublease income, and $0.3 million for
other costs associated with the reorganization. These initiatives were substantially complete as of January 1, 2000.

Income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, decreased as a percentage of net sales to 0.8% in 1999 from 2.2%
in 1998.The decrease in income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, as a percentage of net sales is primarily due to
the significant decrease in gross profit as a percentage of net sales as described above. U.S. income from operations, excluding
reorganization costs, decreased as a percentage of net sales to 0.9% in 1999 from 2.8% in 1998. European income from operations,
excluding reorganization costs, decreased as a percentage of net sales to 0.3% in 1999 from 1.1% in 1998. For Other International,

income from operations, excluding reorganization costs, decreased as a percentage of net sales to 1.0% in 1999 from 1.4% in 1998.
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Other (income) expense consisted primarily of interest, foreign currency exchange losses,gains on sales of securities and
miscellaneous non-operating (income) expenses. During 1999, the Company recorded net other income of $90.5 million, or 0.3%
as a percentage of net sales,as compared to net other expense of $79.7 million, or 0.4% as a percentage of net sales in 1998.The
increase in other income over 1998 is primarily attributable to the gain realized on the sale of Softbank common stock, partially
offset by an increase in interest expense. In December 1999, the Company sold 1,040,400 shares or 35% of its original holdings
in Softbank common stock for a pre-tax gain of approximately $201.3 million, net of related costs. Interest expense increased pri-
marily due to increased borrowings to finance the January 1999 ERL acquisition; the fourth quarter 1998 investment in Softbank;
the July 1998 acquisition of Macrotron; changing vendor terms and conditions associated with floor plan financing arrangements;
and the growth of the Company’s ongoing operations. This increase was partially offset by a decrease in average interest rates in fis-
cal 1999 compared to fiscal 1998.

The provision for income taxes, excluding extraordinary items, decreased 31.4% to $110.9 million in 1999 from $161.7
million in 1998, primarily reflecting the 28.6% decrease in the Company’s income before income taxes. The Company’s effective
tax rate was 38.2% in 1999 compared to 39.7% in 1998.The decrease in the effective tax rate was primarily due to tax planning

in certain countries.

In March 1999,the Company repurchased Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures with a carrying value of $56.5 million
as of the repurchase date for approxirnately $50.3 million in cash.The debenture repurchase resulted in an extraordinary gain of

$3.8 million (net of $2.4 million in income taxes).

Quarterly data; seasonality

The Company’s quarterly operating results have fluctuated significantly in the past and will likely continue to do so in the
future as a result of seasonal variations in the demand for the products and services offered by the Company; changing competitive
conditions including pricing; variation in the amount of provisions for excess and obsolete inventory, vendor sponsored programs,
and doubtful accounts resulting from technological changes or other changes in the market or economy as a whole; changes in the
level of operating expenses to support seasonal changes in demand;the impact of acquisitions; the introduction by suppliers of new
hardware and software products and services which may result in the obsolescence of existing products and/or affect the mix of
products sold or overall demand;the loss or consolidation of a significant supplier or customer; product supply constraints;interest
rate fluctuations;currency fluctuations;and general economic conditions. The Company’s narrow operating margins may magnify
the impact of these factors on the Company’s operating results. Specific historical seasonal variations in the Company’s operating
results have included a reduction of demand in Europe during the summer months,increased Canadian government purchasing in
the first quarter (except in the first quarter of 2000,as explained above), and worldwide pre-holiday stocking in the retail channel
during the September-to-November period.

The following table sets forth certain unaudited quarterly historical financial data for each of the eight quarters in the period
ended December 30, 2000.This unaudited quarterly information has been prepared on the same basis as the annual information
presented elsewhere herein and, in the Company’s opinion, includes all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjust-
ments) necessary for a fair presentation of the selected quarterly information.This information should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report to Shareowners. The operating

results for any quarter shown are not necessarily indicative of results for any future period.
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Consolidated quarterly information

Diluted Diluted
Income Income Earnings Per Earnings
Income Before Before Share Before ~ Per Share
Net Gross From Income  Extraordinary  Net Extraordinary on Net
Sales Profit  Operations Taxes Item Income Item Income
(In millions, except per share data)
Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2000
Thirteen Weeks Ended: (1)
April 3, 1999 $ 67253 § 3593 § 855 $ 61.1 $ 385 $ 423 $ 0.26 $ 029
July 3, 1999 6,804.8 367.8 107.6 79.6 50.3 50.3 0.34 0.34
October 2, 1999 6,710.1 321.9 52.8 24.8 15.8 15.8 0.11 0.1
January 1, 2000 @ 7,828.5 287.2 (45.9) 125.0 75.0 75.0 0.51 0.51
Fiscal Year Ended December 30, 2000
Thirteen Weeks Ended:
April 1, 2000 @) $ 7,793 § 3662 $ 705 $ 152.0 S 940 S 96.1 S 0.64 $ 065
July 1, 2000 7,295.0 361.5 76.4 53.5 331 333 0.22 0.22
September 30, 2000 7,558.7 387.9 87.2 62.9 38.8 38.9 0.26 0.26
December 30, 2000 8,065.1 440.7 119.3 94.1 57.9 57.9 0.39 0.39

(1) Reflects charges related to a reorganization plan initiated to streamline operations and reorganize resources. Quarterly charges were recorded as follows: first quarter, $6.2 million; second quarter,
$2.1 million; third quarter, $2.7 million; fourth quarter, $9.3 million.

() For the quarter ended January 1, 2000, the Company recorded larger-than-historical provisions of $48.4 million for excess and obsolete inventory, $53.6 million for losses on vendor-sponsored
programs, and $40.6 million for doubtful accounts, primarily resulting from rapid industry changes and changes in vendor terms and conditions. In addition, income before income taxes included a
pre-tax gain of approximately $201.3 million, net of related costs, realized from the sale of Softbank common stock.

() For the quarter ended April 1, 2000, income before income taxes included a pre-tax gain of approximately $111.5 million, net of related costs, realized from the sale of Softbank common stock.

As indicated in the table above, the Company’s net sales in the fourth quarter of each fiscal year have generally been higher
than those in the other three quarters in the same fiscal year. The trend of higher fourth quarter net sales is attributable to calendar

year-end business purchases and holiday period purchases made by customers.

Liquidity and capital resources

Cash flows

The Company has financed its growth and cash needs largely through income from operations,borrowings,sales of accounts
receivable through established accounts receivable facilities, trade and supplier credit,its initial public stock offering in November
1996, the sale of Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures in June 1998, and the sale of Softbank common stock in December
1999 and January 2000.

In 2000 and 1999, one of the Company’s objectives has been to improve the utilization of working capital and put assets to
work through increasing inventory turns and steady management of vendor payables and customer receivables. The Company’s
success in this regard can be best demonstrated by the Company’s ability to repurchase convertible debentures and reduce overall
debt levels, thereby lowering its debt-to-capitalization ratio, including off-balance sheet debt, to 43.7% and 45.0% at December
30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, respectively, compared to 56.5% at January 2, 1999.Although the Company has realized improve-
ments in working capital management and debt reduction in 2000 and 1999, and will continue to strive for further improvements
for the foreseeable future, no assurance can be made that the Company will be able to maintain its current debt levels. The follow-
ing is a detailed discussion of the Company’s cash flows for 2000,1999 and 1998:

Net cash provided by operating activities was $836.4 million in 2000 and $573.0 million in 1999 compared to cash used of
$278.5 million in 1998.The significant increase in cash provided by operating activities in 2000 compared to 1999 was primarily
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attributable to higher operating income and an increase in the amount of accounts receivable sold under the Company’s accounts
receivable facilities offset by a decrease in trade creditor financing of product inventory. The significant increase in cash provided by
operating activities in 1999 compared to cash used in 1998 was primarily attributable to the increase in trade creditor financing of
product inventory (through an increase in accounts payable) and a reduction in the growth rate of accounts receivable over 1998.

Net cash used by investing activities was $19.5 million, $138.4 million, and $218.6 million in 2000,1999, and 1998, respec-
tively. These uses of cash were due in part to capital expenditures for the Company’s expansion of warechouses and other facilities,
the development of information systems and the Company’s commitment to growth through acquisitions and strategic alliances. In
2000, the Company used approximately $146.1 million in cash for capital expenditures, which was partially offset by the proceeds
from the sale of Softbank common stock totaling approximately $119.2 million. In 1999, the Company used approximately $241.9
million in cash for acquisitions,net of cash acquired, and $135.3 million for capital expenditures, which were partially offset by the
proceeds from the sale of Softbank common stock totaling approximately $230.1 million.In 1998, the Company used approximate-
ly $96.6 million in cash for acquisitions, net of cash acquired,approximately $143.2 million for capital expenditures,and approxi-
mately $50.3 million for the purchase of Softbank common stock.Mitigating the uses of cash in 1998 was approximately $75.3
million in cash proceeds from a sale-leaseback agreement entered into by the Company for the sale of its Santa Ana, California
facility and a portion of its Buffalo, New York facility to a third party.

Net cash used by financing activities was $802.6 million in 2000 and $413.8 million in 1999 compared to cash provided
of $497.1 million in 1998. Net cash used by financing activities in 2000 was primarily due to the repurchase of the convertible
debentures,the net repayment of borrowings under the revolving credit facilities, and the repayment of other debt through the use
of cash provided by operations and the continued focus on working capital management, as well as the proceeds received from the
sale of Softbank common stock in 2000. Net cash used by financing activities in 1999 was primarily due to the repurchase of the
convertible debentures and the net repayment of borrowings under the revolving credit facilities through the use of the proceeds
received from the sale of Softbank common stock, as well as the continued focus on working capital management. Net cash provided
by financing activities in 1998 was primarily due to the proceeds from the convertible debentures and stock option exercises, which

were partially offset by the net repayment of other debt.

Acquisitions
The Company had no significant acquisitions in 2000.

Capital resources

The Company has three revolving credit facilities with bank syndicates providing an aggregate credit availability of $1.65 bil-
lion.Under these credit facilities, the Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants,including minimum tangible
net worth, restrictions on funded debt and interest coverage. The credit facilities also restrict the amount of dividends the Company
can pay as well as the amount of common stock that the Company can repurchase annually. Borrowings are subject to the satisfaction
of customary conditions, including the absence of any material adverse change in the Company’s business or financial condition. Two
of these credit facilities, representing approximately $1.15 billion in credit availability, mature in October 2001 while the remaining
credit facility matures in October 2002.At December 30,2000 and January 1, 2000, the Company had $75.5 million and $503.5
million, respectively, in outstanding borrowings under the credit facilities.

The Company has an arrangement pursuant to which certain U.S. trade accounts receivable of the Company are transferred to
a trust, which in turn has sold certificates representing undivided interests in the total pool of trade receivables without recourse.
The trust has issued fixed-rate, medium-term certificates and has the ability to support a commercial paper program. Sales of
receivables under these programs result in a reduction of total accounts receivable on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. In
March 2000, the Company completed a new 5-year accounts receivable securitization program, which provides for the issuance of
up to $700 million in commercial paper. At December 30,2000 and January 1,2000, the amount of medium-term certificates out-
standing totaled $50 million and $75 million, respectively, and the amount of commercial paper outstanding under the new pro-

gram totaled $650 million and $0, respectively. The Company believes that available funding under this new program provides
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increased flexibility for the Company to make incremental investments in strategic growth initiatives and to manage working
capital requirements.

The Company also has certain other facilities relating to accounts receivable in Europe and Canada which provide up to
approximately $260 million of additional financing capacity. Under these programs, the Company had sold approximately $210
million and $188 million of trade accounts receivable in the aggregate at December 30,2000 and January 1, 2000, respectively,

resulting in a further reduction of total trade accounts receivable on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

The aggregate amount of trade accounts receivable sold as of December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000 totaled approximately
$910 million and $263 million, respectively. Proceeds from these accounts receivable facilities are generally used to repay existing
indebtedness. The Company believes that there are sufficient trade accounts receivable to support the U.S., European and Canadian

accounts receivable facilities.

On June 9,1998, the Company sold $1.33 billion aggregate principal amount at maturity of its Zero Coupon Convertible
Senior Debentures due 2018 in a private placement.The Company subsequently registered the resale of these debentures with the
SEC and they are now generally saleable under Rule 144. Gross proceeds from this offering were $460.4 million. The debentures
were sold at an issue price of $346.18 per $1,000 principal amount at maturity (representing a yield to maturity of 5.375% per
annum),and are convertible into shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock at a rate of 5.495 shares per $1,000 principal

amount at maturity, subject to adjustment under certain circumstances.

In 2000 and 1999, the Company repurchased outstanding Zero Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures with a total carrying
value of $235.2 million and $56.5 million, respectively, as of their repurchase dates for approximately $231.3 million and $50.3
million in cash, respectively. The debenture repurchases resulted in extraordinary gains of $2.4 million and $3.8 million in 2000
and 1999, respectively, net of $1.5 million and $2.4 million in income taxes, respectively.

At December 30, 2000, there were $220.0 million of Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures outstanding that were convertible
into approximately 3.1 million shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock.The debentures are redeemable at the option of
the Company on or after June 9, 2003, at the issue price plus accrued original issue discount to the date of the redemption. Each
debenture is subject to repurchase at the option of the holder as of June 9, 2001,June 9, 2003,June 9, 2008, or June 9,2013, or
if there is a Fundamental Change (as defined), at the issue price plus accrued original issue discount to the date of the redemption.
In the event of a repurchase at the option of the holder (other than upon a Fundamental Change), the Company may, at its option,
satisfy the redemption in cash or Class A Common Stock,or any combination thereof. In the case of any such repurchase as of June
9, 2001, the Company may elect, in lieu of the payment of cash or Class A Common Stock, to satisfy the redemption in new Zero
Coupon Convertible Senior Debentures due 2018.

The Company and its foreign subsidiaries have additional lines of credit, commercial paper, short-term overdraft facilities and
other credit facilities with various financial institutions worldwide, which provide for borrowings aggregating approximately $750
million at December 30, 2000.Most of these arrangements are on an uncommitted basis and are reviewed periodically for renewal.
At December 30,2000, the Company had $250.1 million outstanding under these facilities.

The proceeds from stock option exercises provide an additional source of cash to the Company. In 2000, 1999,and 1998,
respectively, cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options, including applicable tax benefits, totaled $13.1 million,$20.8
million, and $93.9 million, respectively.

The Company believes that existing cash resources and cash provided by operating activities,supplemented as necessary with
funds available under credit arrangements will provide sufficient resources to meet its present and future working capital and cash

requirements for at least the next 12 months.

Capital expenditures
The Company presently expects to spend approxirnately $145 million in fiscal 2001 for capital expenditures due to continued

expansion of its business.

New accounting standards

Refer to Note 2 of the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the discussion of new accounting standards.
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Market risk

The Company is exposed to the impact of foreign currency fluctuations and interest rate changes due to its international sales
and global funding. In the normal course of business, the Company employs established policies and procedures to manage its expo-
sure to fluctuations in the value of foreign currencies and interest rates using a variety of financial instruments. It is the Company’s
policy to utilize financial instruments to reduce risks where internal netting cannot be effectively employed. It is the Company’s
policy not to enter into foreign currency or interest rate transactions for speculative purposes.

In addition to product sales and costs,the Company has foreign currency risk related to debt that is denominated in currencies
other than the dollar and cross-currency swaps hedging intercompany debt. The Company’s foreign cur rency risk management
objective is to protect its earnings and cash flows resulting from sales,purchases and other transactions from the adverse impact
of exchange rate movements. Foreign exchange risk is managed by using forward and option contracts to hedge receivables and
payables. By policy, the Company maintains hedge coverage between minimum and maximum percentages. Cross-currency swaps
are used to hedge foreign currency denominated payments related to intercompany and third-party loans. During 2000,hedged
transactions were denominated primarily in euros, Canadian dollars, Australian dollars,Danish kroner, Swedish krona,Swiss francs,
Norwegian kroner, Indian rupees and Mexican pesos.

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates primarily as a result of its long-term debt used to maintain liquidity and
finance inventory, capital expenditures and business expansion. Interest rate risk is also present in the cross-currency swaps hedging
intercompany and third-party loans. The Company’s interest rate risk management objective is to limit the impact of interest rate
changes on earnings and cash flows and to lower its overall borrowing costs. To achieve its objectives the Company uses a combina-
tion of fixed- and variable-rate debt.As of December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, approximately 40% and 34%, respectively, of
the Company’s outstanding debt had fixed interest rates.

Market risk management

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk and related derivatives use is monitored using a variety of techniques including a review
of market value, sensitivity analysis and Value-at-Risk (“VaR”). The VaR model determines the maximum potential loss in the fair
value of foreign exchange rate-sensitive financial instruments assuming a one-day holding period. The VaR model estimates were
made assuming normal market conditions and a 95% confidence level. There are various modeling techniques that can be used
in the VaR computation. The Company’s computations are based on interrelationships between currencies and interest rates
(a “variance/ co-variance”technique). These interrelationships were determined by observing foreign currency market changes and
interest rate changes over the preceding 90 days. The value of foreign currency options does not change on a one-to-one basis with
changes in the underlying currency rate. The potential loss in option value was adjusted for the estimated sensitivity (the “delta”and
“gamma”) to changes in the underlying currency rate. The model includes all of the Company’s forwards, options,cross-currency
swaps and nonfunctional currency denominated debt (i.c., the Company’s market-sensitive derivative and other financial instruments
as defined by the SEC). The accounts receivable and accounts payable denominated in foreign currencies, which certain of these
instruments are intended to hedge, were excluded from the model.

The VaR model is a risk analysis tool and does not purport to represent actual losses in fair value that will be incurred by the
Company, nor does it consider the potential effect of favorable changes in market rates. It also does not represent the maximum
possible loss that may occur. Actual future gains and losses will likely differ from those estimated because of changes or differences

in market rates and interrelationships, hedging instruments and hedge percentages, timing and other factors.
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The following table sets forth the estimated maximum potential one-day loss in fair value, calculated using the VaR model (in
millions). The increase in VaR from interest rate sensitive financial instruments reflects an increase in the notional value of such
instruments from January 1, 2000 to December 30, 2000. The Company believes that the hypothetical loss in fair value of its deriva-
tives would be offset by gains in the value of the underlying transactions being hedged.

Interest Rate Currency
Sensitive Sensitive
Financial Financial Combined
Instruments Instruments Portfolio
VaR as of December 30, 2000 $ 11.7 $ 0.1 $ 10.2
VaR as of January 1, 2000 4.5 0.6 4.4

Euro conversion

On January 1, 1999, a single currency called the euro was introduced in Europe. Twelve of the 15 member countries of the
European Union have adopted the euro as their common legal currency. Fixed conversion rates between these participating countries’
existing currencies (the “legacy currencies”) and the euro have been established. The legacy currencies are scheduled to remain legal
tender as denominations of the euro until at least January 1, 2002 (but not later than July 1, 2002).During this transition period,
parties may settle transactions using cither the euro or a participating country’s legacy currency. Beginning in January 2002, new
euro-denominated bills and coins will be issued and legacy currencies will be withdrawn from circulation. The Company has imple-
mented plans to address the issues raised by the euro currency conversion. These plans include, among others, the need to adapt
computer information systems and business processes and equipment to accommodate euro-denominated transactions; the need to
analyze the legal and contractual implications on contracts; and the ability of the Company’s customers and vendors to accommodate
euro-denominated transactions on a timely basis. Since the implementation of the euro on January 1, 1999, the Company has experi-
enced improved efficiencies in its cash management program in Europe as all intracompany transactions within participating countries
are conducted in euros. In addition, the Company has reduced hedging activities in Europe for transactions conducted between euro
participating countries. Since the Company’s information systems and processes generally accommodate multiple currencies,the
Company anticipates that modifications to its information systems, equipment and processes will be made on a timely basis and does
not expect any failures which would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations or

that the costs of such modifications will have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Cautionary statements for purposes of the safe harbor provisions of the private
securities litigation reform act of 1995

The matters in this Annual Report that are forward-looking statements are based on current management expectations that
involve certain risks, including without limitation: intense competition;continued pricing and margin pressures; failure to adjust
costs in response to a sudden decrease in demand; the potential for continued restrictive vendor terms and conditions; the potential
decline as well as seasonal variations in demand for the Company’s products and services; unavailability of adequate capital; manage-
ment of growth; reliability of information systems;interest rate and foreign currency fluctuations; impact of governmental controls
and political or economic instability on foreign operations; changes in local, regional, and global economic conditions and practices;
dependency on key individuals; product supply shortages;the potential termination of a supply agreement with a major supplier;
acquisitions;rapid product improvement and technological change, and resulting obsolescence risks; risk of credit loss; dependency
on independent shipping companies; and the changes in terms of subsidized floor plan financing,

The Company has instituted and continues to institute changes to its strategies, operations and processes to address these risk
factors and to mitigate their impact on the Company’s results of operations and financial condition. However, no assurances can be
given that the Company will be successful in these efforts. For a further discussion of these and other significant factors to consider
in connection with forward-looking statements concerning the Company, reference is made to Exhibit 99.01 of the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30, 2000; other risks or uncertainties may be detailed from time

to time in the Company’s future SEC filings.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Dollars in 000s, except per share data)

Fiscal Year End

2000 1999
Assets
Current assets:
Cash $ 150,560 $ 128,152
Investment in available-for-sale securities 52,897 142,338
Accounts receivable:
Trade accounts receivable 1,945,496 2,853,509
Retained interest in securitized receivables 407,176 -
Total accounts receivable (less allowances of $96,994 and $100,754) 2,352,672 2,853,509
Inventories 2,919,117 3,471,565
Other current assets 294,838 373,365
Total current assets 5,770,084 6,968,929
Investment in available-for-sale securities = 474,525
Property and equipment, net 350,829 316,643
Goodwill, net 430,853 455,473
Other 57,216 56,357
Total assets $ 6,608,982 $ 8,271,927
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,725,080 $ 4,322,303
Accrued expenses 350,111 317,283
Current maturities of long-term debt 42,774 31,020
Total current liabilities 4,117,965 4,670,606
Convertible debentures 220,035 440,943
Other long-term debt 282,809 876,172
Deferred income taxes and other liabilities 113,781 313,561
Total liabilities 4,734,590 6,301,282
Commitments and contingencies (Note 9)
Redeemable Class B Common Stock = 3,800

Stockholders” equity:

Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000 shares

authorized; no shares issued and outstanding — —
Class A Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 265,000,000 shares

authorized; 75,798,115 and 71,212,517 shares issued

and outstanding in 2000 and 1999, respectively 758 712
(lass B Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 135,000,000 shares

authorized; 70,409,806 and 73,280,871 shares issued

and outstanding in 2000 and 1999 (including 542,855

redeemable shares in 1999), respectively 704 727
Additional paid-in capital 664,840 645,182
Retained earnings 1,221,208 995,035
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (11,936) 328,285
Unearned compensation (1,182) (3,096)

Total stockholders” equity 1,874,392 1,966,845

Total liabilities and stockholders” equity $ 6,608,982 $ 8,271,927

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Income

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Reorganization costs

Income from operations

Other (income) expense:
Interest income
Interest expense
Net foreign currency exchange loss
Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities
Other

Income before income taxes
and extraordinary item

Provision for income taxes
Income before extraordinary item

Extraordinary gain on repurchase of debentures,
net $1,469 and $2,405 in income taxes
Net income

Basic earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item
Extraordinary gain on repurchase of debentures
Net income

Diluted earnings per share:
Income before extraordinary item
Extraordinary gain on repurchase of debentures
Net income

(Dollars in 000s, except per share data)

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998

§ 30,715,149 § 28,068,642 $ 22,034,038
29,158,851 26,732,479 20,642,870
1,556,298 1,336,163 1,391,168
1,202,861 1,115,854 904,563

— 20,305 —

1,202,861 1,136,159 904,563
353,437 200,004 486,605
(8,527) (4,338) (5,652)

88,726 101,691 72,181

3,322 2,583 6,247

(111,458) (201,318) -

18,865 10,893 6,969

(9,072) (90,489) 79,745

362,509 290,493 406,860
138,756 110,852 161,685
223,753 179,641 245,175

2,420 3,778 —

$ 226,173 $ 183,419 $ 245,175
$ 1.54 $ 1.25 $ 1.76
.01 .03 =

$ 1.55 $ 1.28 $ 1.76
S 1.51 $ 1.21 $ 1.64
.01 .03 =

$ 1.52 $ 1.24 $ 1.64

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

(Dollars in 000s)

Accumulated

Additional Other
Common Stock Paid-In Retained  Comprehensive Unearned
Class A Class B Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Compensation Total

January 3, 1998 S 374§ 973 $ 484,912 $ 566,441 $ (14,236) S (258) $1,038,206
Noncash compensation charge

related to stock options 4,392 4,392
Stock options exercised 50 36,337 36,387
Income tax benefit from

exercise of stock options 57,476 57,476
Vesting of Redeemable

Class B Common Stock 11 8,118 8,129
Conversion of Class B to

Class A Common Stock 241 (241) =
Amortization of unearned

compensation 170 170
Comprehensive income 245,175 9,322 254,497
January 2, 1999 665 743 591,235 811,616 (4,914) (89) 1,399,257
Noncash compensation charge

related to stock options 1,978 1,978
Stock options exercised 17 7,387 7,404
Income tax benefit from

exercise of stock options 13,428 13,428
Vesting of Redeemable

(lass B Common Stock 6 3,901 3,907
Conversion of Class B to

Class A Common Stock 22 (22) =
Grant of restricted Class A

Common Stock 3 3,455 (3,458) —
Issuance of Class A Common

Stock related to Employee

Stock Purchase Plan 5 12,534 12,539
Warrants issued 11,264 11,264
Amortization of unearned

compensation 450 450
Comprehensive income 183,419 333,199 516,618
January 1, 2000 712 727 645,182 995,035 328,285 (3,096) 1,966,845
Noncash compensation charge

related to stock options 1,493 1,493
Stock options exercised 16 10,381 10,397
Income tax benefit from

exercise of stock options 2,671 2,671
Vesting of Redeemable

Class B Common Stock 6 3,705 3,711
Conversion of Class B to

Class A Common Stock 29 (29) =
Forfeiture of restricted Class A

Common Stock (485) 192 (293)
Issuance of Class A Common

Stock related to Employee

Stock Purchase Plan 1 1,893 1,894
Amortization of unearned

compensation 1,722 1,722
Comprehensive income (loss) 226,173 (340,221) (114,048)
December 30, 2000 § 758 S 704 S 664,840  $1,221,208  § (11,936) $(1,182)  $ 1,874,392
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(Dollars in 000s)

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $ 226,173 $ 183,419 $ 245175
Adjustments to reconcile net income to
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 86,471 74,701 57,673
Amortization of goodwill 22,039 22,900 10,269
Deferred income taxes 50,757 22,524 3,532
Pre-tax gain on sale of available-for-sale securities (111,458) (201,318) =
Gain on repurchase of debentures (net of tax) (2,420) (3,778) =
Noncash compensation charge 2,922 2,428 4,562
Noncash interest expense on debentures 20,223 26,442 14,248
Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
net of effects of acquisitions:
Changes in amounts sold under accounts
receivable programs 647,000 163,000 (60,000)
Accounts receivable (141,757) (257,266) (726,727)
Inventories 556,222 (307,940) (445,324)
Other current assets 53,850 (101,127) (17,473)
Accounts payable (614,398) 899,574 694,880
Accrued expenses 40,782 49,449 (59,348)
Cash provided (used) by operating activities 836,406 573,008 (278,533)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment (146,104) (135,260) (143,236)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 16,400 10,433 75,321
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (4,620) (241,928) (96,550)
Purchase of available-for-sale securities = = (50,262)
Net proceeds from sale of available-for-sale securities 119,228 230,109 =
Other (4,385) (1,795) (3,867)
Cash used by investing activities (19,481) (138,441) (218,594)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Repurchase of Redeemable Class B Common Stock (89) (107) (650)
Exercise of stock options including tax benefits 13,068 20,832 93,863
Proceeds from issuance of convertible debentures,
net of issuance costs — - 449,604
Repurchase of convertible debentures (231,330) (50,321) =
(Repayment of) proceeds from debt (156,232) 123,999 (80,689)
Net (repayments) borrowings under
revolving credit facilities (428,053) (508,250) 34,978
Cash (used) provided by financing activities (802,636) (413,847) 497,106
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 8,119 10,750 4,491
Increase in cash 22,408 31,470 4,470
Cash, beginning of year 128,152 96,682 92,212
Cash, end of year $ 150,560 $ 128,152 $ 96,682
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash payments during the year:
Interest $ 72,953 $ 72,343 S 61,706
Income taxes 40,438 96,682 109,108

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements

Dollars in 000s,except per share data

Note 1 — Organization and basis of presentation
Ingram Micro Inc. (the “Company” or “Ingram Micro”) is primarily engaged, directly and through its wholly- and majority-
owned subsidiaries, in distribution of information technology products and services worldwide. The Company conducts the majority

of its operations in the United States, Europe, Canada,Latin America and Asia Pacific.

Note 2 — Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly- and majority-owned subsidiaries.

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal year

The fiscal year of the Company is a 52- or 53-weck period ending on the Saturday nearest to December 31.All references
herein to “2000,”“1999,” and “1998” represent the 52-week fiscal years ended December 30, 2000, January 1, 2000, and January 2,
1999, respectively.

Use of estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the financial statement date, and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates
primarily relate to reser ves for inventory, vendor programs and credit losses on accounts receivable. Actual results could differ from

these estimates.

Revenue recognition

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (“SAB
1017). SAB 101 summarizes the SEC’s views in applying generally accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition. The
adoption of SAB 101 had no material impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Revenue on products shipped is recognized when the risks and rights of ownership are substantially passed to the customer.
Service revenues are recognized upon delivery of the services. The Company, under specific conditions, permits its customers to

return or exchange products. The provision for estimated sales returns is recorded concurrently with the recognition of revenue.

Vendor programs
Funds received from vendors for price protection,product rebates, marketing or training programs are recorded net of direct
costs as adjustments to product costs; selling, general and administrative expenses; or revenue according to the nature of the program.
The Company generated approximately 42% of its net sales in fiscal 2000, 39% in 1999, and 40% in 1998 from products

purchased from three vendors.

Warranties

The Company’s suppliers generally warrant the products distributed by the Company and allow returns of defective products,
including those that have been returned to the Company by its customers. The Company does not independently warrant the prod-
ucts it distributes; however, the Company does warrant the following:(1) its services with regard to products that it configures for
its customers,and (2) products that it builds to order from components purchased from other sources. Provision for estimated
warranty costs is recorded at the time of sale and periodically adjusted to reflect actual experience. Warranty expense was not

material to the Company’s consolidated statement of income.
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Foreign currency translation and remeasurement

Financial statements of foreign subsidiaries,for which the functional currency is the local currency, are translated into United
States (“U.S.”) dollars using the exchange rate at each balance sheet date for assets and liabilities and a weighted average exchange
rate for each period for statement of income items. Translation adjustments are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income, a component of stockholders’ equity. The functional currency of the Company’s subsidiaries in Latin America and certain
countries within the Company’s Asian operations is the U.S.dollar; accordingly, the monetary assets and liabilities of these sub-
sidiaries are translated into U.S.dollars at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date. Revenues, expenses, gains or losses
are translated at the average exchange rate for the period, and nonmonetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical rates.
The resultant remeasurement gains and losses of these subsidiaries are recognized in the consolidated statement of income. Gains

and losses from foreign currency transactions are included in the consolidated statement of income.

Fair value of financial instruments

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other accrued expenses approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these items. The carrying amounts of outstanding debt issued pursuant to bank credit agreements
approximate fair value because interest rates over the relative term of these instruments approximate current market interest rates.
The estimated fair value of the Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures including original issue discount was $219,323 and $388,939
at December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, respectively, based upon quoted market prices. The carrying value at December 30,
2000 and January 1,2000 was $220,035 and $440,943, respectively.

Cash
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Book

overdrafts of §$184,945 and $140,149 as of December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, respectively, are included in accounts payable.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of average cost or market.

Long-lived assets

The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived and intangible assets when there is evidence that events or
changes in circumstances have made recovery of the asset’s carrying value unlikely. An impairment loss would be recognized when
the sum of the expected, undiscounted future net cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset. The amount of an impair-

ment loss would be recognized as the excess of the asset’s carrying value over the fair value.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives. The Company also capitalizes computer software costs that meet both the definition of internal-use software and
defined criteria for capitalization in accordance with Statement of Position 98-1,“Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software
Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.” Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated

useful life:

Buildings 40 year s
Leasehold impro  vements 3-17 year s
Distribution equipment 5-7 year s
Computer equipment and software 2-5 year s

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to expense as incurred. Additions, major renewals and betterments to

property and equipment are capitalized.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements ] continued

Dollars in 000s,except per share data

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired in an acquisition accounted
for using the purchase method, and is amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 10 to 30 years. Accumulated

amortization was $76,560 at December 30, 2000 and $54,521 at January 1, 2000.

Investments in available-for-sale securities

The Company classifies its existing marketable equity securities as available-for-sale in accordance with the provisions of
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.” These secu-
rities are carried at fair market value, with unrealized gains and losses reported in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated

other comprehensive income (loss). Realized gains or losses on securities sold are based on the specific identification method.

In December 1998, the Company purchased 2,972,400 shares of common stock of SOFTBANK Corp. (“Softbank”), Japan’s
largest distributor of software, peripherals and networking products, for approximately $50,262. During December 1999, the
Company sold 1,040,400 shares or approximately 35% of its original investment in Softbank common stock for approximately
$230,109 resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately §201,318, net of related expenses. In January 2000,the Company sold an
additional 445,800 shares or approximately 15% of its original holdings in Softbank common stock for approximately $119,228,
net of expenses, resulting in a pre-tax gain of approximately $111,458.The realized gains, net of expenses, associated with the sales
of Softbank common stock in January 2000 and December 1999 totaled $69,327 and $125,220, respectively, net of deferred taxes
of $42,131 and $76,098, respectively. The Company used the net proceeds from the sales to repay existing indebtedness. During
April 2000, Softbank effected a 3 for 1 stock split.All Softbank share information has been adjusted to give retroactive effect to
Softbank’s stock split.

In connection with the December 1999 sale of Softbank common stock, the Company issued warrants to Softbank for the
purchase of 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock with an exercise price of $13.25 per share, which approxi-
mated the market price of the Company’s common stock on the warrant issuance date. The warrants were exercisable immediately
and have a 5-year term.The estimated fair value of these warrants upon issuance was approximately $11,264 and was determined

using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using the following assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 6.27%
Term of warrant 5 year s
Expected stock volatility 55.4%

The estimated fair value of the warrants has been included in other expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of
income for fiscal 1999.

At December 30,2000 and January 1,2000, the unrealized holding gain associated with the Softbank common stock totaled
$16,965 and $356,936, respectively, net of $10,801 and $227,248, respectively, in deferred income taxes.

Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of
trade accounts receivable and derivative financial instruments. Credit risk with respect to trade accounts receivable is limited due
to the large number of customers and their dispersion across geographic areas. No single customer accounts for 10% or more of
the Company’s net sales. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’financial conditions, obtains credit
insurance in certain locations and requires collateral in certain circumstances. The Company maintains an allowance for potential

credit losses.
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Derivative financial instruments

The Company operates internationally with distribution facilities in various locations around the world. The Company reduces
its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign exchange rates by creating offsetting positions through the use of derivative
financial instruments. The market risk related to the foreign exchange agreements is offset by changes in the valuation of the under-
lying items being hedged. The majority of the Company’s derivative financial instruments have terms of 90 days or less. The
Company currently does not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative purposes, nor is the Company a party

to leveraged derivatives.

Foreign exchange risk is managed by using forward and option contracts to hedge receivables and payables. Written foreign
currency options are used to mitigate currency risk in conjunction with purchased options. Currency interest rate swaps and for-
ward rate agreements are used to hedge foreign currency denominated principal and interest payments related to intercompany and
third-party loans.

Derivative financial instruments are accounted for on an accrual basis. Income and expense are recorded in the same category
as that arising from the related asset or liability being hedged. Gains and losses resulting from effective hedges of existing assets,
liabilities or firm commitments are deferred and recognized when the offsetting gains and losses are recognized on the related
hedged items. Gains or losses on written foreign currency options are adjusted to market value at the end of each accounting

period and have not been material to date.

The notional amount of forward exchange contracts and options is the amount of foreign currency bought or sold at maturity.
The notional amount of currency interest rate swaps and forward rate agreements are the underlying principal and currency
amounts used in determining the interest payments exchanged over the life of the swap. Notional amounts are indicative of the
extent of the Company’s involvement in the various types and uses of derivative financial instruments and are not a measure of the
Company’s exposure to credit or market risks through its use of derivatives. The estimated fair value of derivative financial instru-
ments represents the amount required to enter into like offsetting contracts with similar remaining maturities based on quoted
market prices.

Credit exposure for derivative financial instruments is limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counterparties’obligations
under the contracts exceed the obligations of the Company to the counterparties. Potential credit losses are minimized through
careful evaluation of counterparty credit standing, selection of counterparties from a limited group of high-quality institutions and

other contract provisions.

Derivative financial instruments comprise the following:

2000 1999
Notional Estimated Notional Estimated
Amounts Fair Value Amounts Fair Value
Foreign exchange forward contracts $1,141,702 $ (11,799) $ 365,931 $ (251)
Purchased foreign currency options 14,333 111 54,149 1,215
Written foreign currency options 18,837 (72) 53,603 (503)
Currency interest rate swaps 110,000 11,775 211,534 27,457
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Notes to consolidated financial statements ] continued

Dollars in 000s,except per share data

Comprehensive income (loss)

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 130,“Reporting Comprehensive Income” (“FAS 130”) establishes standards
for reporting and displaying comprehensive income and its components in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
Comprehensive income is defined in FAS 130 as the change in equity (net assets) of a business enterprise during a period from
transactions and other events and circumstances from nonowner sources and is comprised of net income and other comprehensive

income (loss).

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) are as follows:

Foreign Unrealized Accumulated
Currency Gain on Other

Translation Available-for-Sale  Comprehensive

Adjustment Securities Income (Loss)
Balance at January 3, 1998 $ (14,236) $ = $ (14,236)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment 2,656 = 2,656
Unrealized holding gain arising during the period = 6,666 6,666
Balance at January 2, 1999 (11,580) 6,666 (4,914)
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (17,071) = (17,071)
Unrealized holding gain arising during the period = 475,490 475,490
Redlassification adjustment for realized gain included in net income = (125,220) (125,220)
Balance at January 1, 2000 (28,651) 356,936 328,285
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (250) = (250)
Unrealized holding loss arising during the period = (270,644) (270,644)
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain included in net income = (69,327) (69,327)
Balance at December 30, 2000 $ (28,901) $ 16,965 $ (11,936)

Accounting for stock-based compensation

The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock Based Compensation” (“FAS 123”). As permitted by FAS 123, the Company continues to measure compensation cost in
accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related

interpretations, but provides pro forma disclosures of net income and earnings per share as if the fair-value method had been applied.
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Earnings per share

The Company reports a dual presentation of Basic Earnings per Share (“Basic EPS”) and Diluted Earnings per Share (“Diluted
EPS”). Basic EPS excludes dilution and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares out-
standing during the reported period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if stock options and other commit-

ments to issue common stock were exercised using the treasury stock method or the if-converted method, where applicable.

The composition of Basic EPS and Diluted EPS is as follows:

2000 1999 1998

Income before extraordinary item $ 223,753 $ 179,641 $ 245,175
Weighted average shares 145,213,882 143,404,207 139,263,810
Basic earnings per share before extraordinary item $ 1.54 $ 1.25 $ 1.76
Weighted average shares including the dilutive effect

of stock options (3,427,109; 4,380,505; and 10,274,060

for Fiscal 2000, 1999, and 1998, respectively) 148,640,991 147,784,712 149,537,870
Diluted earnings per share before extraordinary item $ 1.51 $ 1.21 $ 1.64

At December 30, 2000, January 1,2000, and January 2,1999, there were $220,035, $440,943,and $473,475, respectively, in
Zero Coupon Convertible Debentures that were convertible into approximately 3,051,000, 6,428,000, and 7,308,000 shares of
Class A Common Stock (see Note 7). These potential shares were excluded from the computation of Diluted EPS because their
effect would be antidilutive. Additionally, there were approximately 11,178,000;3,483,000; and 388,000 options in 2000,1999,
and 1998, respectively, that were not included in the computation of Diluted EPS because the exercise price was greater than the

average market price of the Class A Common Stock,thereby resulting in an antidilutive effect.

New accounting standards

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (‘FAS 133”). FAS 133 was amended by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 137,“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities — Deferral of the Effective Date of
FAS No. 133” and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138,“Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities — an amendment of FASB No. 133.” As amended, FAS 133 establishes accounting and reporting stan-
dards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts (collectively referred to as
derivatives),and for hedging activities. FAS 133, as amended, is effective for the Company in fiscal 2001.The Company does not
expect the adoption of FAS 133 to have a material impact on its reported consolidated financial condition or results of operations.

In September 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a replacement of FASB Statement
No. 125”7 (“FAS 140”). FAS 140 revises the standards for accounting for securitizations and other transfers of financial assets and
collateral. The accounting standards of FAS 140 are effective for transfers and servicing of financial assets and extinguishments of
liabilities occuring after March 31,2001.The Company does not expect the adoption of FAS 140 to have a material impact on its

reported financial condition or results of operations.
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Notes to consolidated financial statements ] continued

Dollars in 000s,except per share data

Note 3 — Reorganization costs

During 1999,the Company initiated a reorganization plan primarily in the U.S., but also in Europe to streamline certain oper-
ations and strengthen operational efficiencies. In connection with this reorganization plan,the Company recorded a charge of
$20,305 for the fiscal year ended January 1,2000.The 1999 reorganization charge included employee termination benefits for
approximately 597 employees; a write-off of software used in the production of unbranded systems; costs of closing and consolidat-
ing redundant facilities which related primarily to excess lease costs net of estimated sublease income;and other costs associated
with the reorganization. These initiatives were substantially completed at January 1, 2000 and related costs have been substantially

paid and charged against the liability, without significant adjustment.

The payment activities in 2000 and 1999 are summarized as follows:

Outstanding Amounts Paid
Liability at and Charged Remaining
Beginning of Reorganization  Against the Liability at
2000 Period Charge Liability End of Period
Employee termination benefits $ 1,708 $ — § (1,269) $ 439
Facility costs 612 — (612) =
Total 2,320 - (1,881) 439
1999
Employee termination benefits $ = $ 12,322 § (10,614) $ 1,708
Software costs = 6,381 (6,381) =
Facility costs = 1,284 (672) 612
Other costs = 318 (318) =
Total - 20,305 (17,985) 2,320
Note 4 — Acquisitions

In January 1999, the Company purchased 44,114,340 shares of the common stock of Ingram Micro Asia Ltd.(formerly known
as Electronic Resources Ltd.,“ERL”) from certain shareholders,which increased the Company’s ownership to 39.6% from the 21%
ownership held in 1998. In accordance with Singapore law, the Company was required to extend a tender offer for the remaining
shares and warrants of ERL as a result of its increased ownership. The Company offered to purchase the remaining outstanding
shares and warrants for approximately $1.20 and $0.65 per share and warrant, respectively, during the tender offer period from
January 4, 1999 to February 19, 1999.In addition, during January and February 1999, the Company made open market purchases
of ERL shares and warrants. As a result of the open market purchases and the tender offer, the Company’s ownership in ERL
increased to approximately 95%. In the third quarter of 1999, the Company commenced a take-over offer for the remaining ERL
shares and warrants not already owned by Ingram Micro. As a result of the takeover, the Company purchased an additional
12,151,748 shares and 1,337,962 warrants of ERL, increasing the Company’s ownership position to 100% of the outstanding
shares of ERL and appr oximately 99% of the outstanding warrants. The aggregate purchase price paid during 1999 for these ERL
shares and warrants, net of cash acquired, was approximately $§237,396.

Prior to 1999, the Company accounted for its investment in ERL,which totaled approximately $71,212,under the equity
method. Due to the purchase of ERL common stock and warrants in 1999, the Company has consolidated the results of ERL.The
Company accounted for the acquisition of ERL under the purchase method;accordingly, the results of ERL’s operations have been
combined with those of the Company commencing with the year ended January 1, 2000.The purchase price was allocated to the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase
price, including the $71,212 paid in December 1997, over the net assets acquired was approximately $240,506 and is being amor -

tized on a straight-line basis over 30 years.
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In April 1999, the Company acquired ITG Computers,an Australian computer products distributor. In addition, the Company
increased its ownership of Walton Kft.,a Hungarian based computer products distributor, to 100% in September 1999, including a
33% interest previously held by the Company’s majority-owned subsidiary Ingram Macrotron AG. Total cash paid for these acquisi-
tions was approximately $4,532, net of cash acquired.These acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method,and the
results of their operations have been combined with those of the Company since their acquisition dates. The purchase price was
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the dates of acquisition. The excess
of the purchase prices over the net assets acquired was approximately $4,922 and is being amortized on a straight—line basis over
10 years.

In July 1998,the Company completed the acquisition of approximately 99% and 91% of the outstanding common and pre-
ferred stock, respectively, of Macrotron AG (“Macrotron”) for approximately $100,000 in cash.Macrotron is based in Munich,
Germany, and operates primarily in Germany, Austria, and Switzerland. The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase
method, and the results of Macrotron’s operations have been combined with those of the Company since July 1, 1998, the effective
date of acquisition. The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair val-
ues at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase price over the net assets acquired was approximately $80,000 and is being
amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 years.

In June 1998, the Company completed its acquisition of Tulip Computer N.Vs assembly facility and related business in
’s-Rosmalen, The Netherlands. In October 1998, the Company completed its purchase of the remaining 30% minority interest
in Ingram Dicom S.A.de C.V. (“Dicom”), a Mexican subsidiary. In December 1998, the Company completed the acquisition of
Nordemaq Commercial de Maquinas Nordeste Ltda, a Brazilian computer products distributor. The combined consideration paid
was approximately $19,000.The acquisitions were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting and the results of opera-
tions have been combined with those of the Company since the respective dates of acquisition. The purchase price was allocated to
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values at the date of acquisition. The excess of the purchase
price over net assets acquired for these acquisitions totaled approximately $9,000 and is being amortized on a straight-line basis

over 20 years.

The Company had no significant acquisitions in 2000.

Note 5 — Accounts receivable

The Company has an arrangement pursuant to which certain U.S. trade accounts receivable of the Company are transferred
to a trust, which in turn has sold certificates representing undivided interests in the total pool of trade receivables without
recourse. The trust has issued fixed-rate medium-term certificates to investors and has the ability to issue variable rate certificates
to support a commercial paper program.In March 2000, the Company completed a new 5-year accounts receivable securitization
program,which provides for the issuance of up to $700,000 in commercial paper. Sales of receivables under these programs result
in a reduction of total accounts receivable on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.Retained interests are carried at their fair
value estimated as the net realizable value, which considers the relatively short liquidation period and includes an estimated provi-
sion for credit losses. At December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000,the amount of medium-term certificates outstanding totaled
$50,000 and $75,000, respectively, and the amount of commercial paper outstanding under the new program totaled $650,000
and $0, rcspcctivcly.

The Company also established certain other facilities relating to accounts receivable in Europe and Canada which provide up to
approximately $260,000 of additional financing capacity. Under these programs,the Company had sold approximately $210,000
and $188,000 of trade accounts receivable in the aggregate at December 30,2000 and January 1,2000, respectively, resulting in a

further reduction of trade accounts receivable on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

Fees in the amount of $13,351, $7,223,and $8,667 in 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively, related to the sale of trade accounts

receivable facilities are included in other expenses in the Company’s consolidated statement of income.
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Note 6 — Property and equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:
Fiscal Year End

2000 1999

Land $ 6,552 $ 8,237
Buildings and leasehold improvements 132,158 93,282
Distribution equipment 205,546 180,147
Computer equipment and software 298,933 249,753
643,189 531,419

Accumulated depreciation (292,360) (214,776)
$ 350,829 $ 316,643

Note 7 — Long-term debt

The Company has a $1,000,000 revolving credit agreement (the “U.S.Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of banks. The U.S.
Credit Facility is unsecured and matures on October 30, 2001.The Company also has two additional multicurrency revolving credit
agreements of $500,000 (the “European Credit Facility”) and $150,000 (the “Canadian Credit Facility”) with two bank syndicates.
The European Credit Facility and the Canadian Credit Facility are unsecured and mature on October 28, 2002 and October 28,
2001, respectively. Collectively, the U.S.Credit Facility, the European Credit Facility and the Canadian Credit Facility are referred
to as the “Credit Facilities.”

Revolving loan rate and competitive bid interest rate options are available under the Credit Facilities. The spreads over LIBOR
for revolving rate loans and associated facility fees are determined by reference to certain financial ratios or credit ratings by recog-
nized rating agencies on the Company’s senior unsecured debt.At December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, the Company had
$75,484 and $503,537 in outstanding borrowings under the Credit Facilities. The weighted average interest rate on outstanding
borrowings under the Credit Facilities at December 30,2000 and January 1,2000, was 7.28% and 6.52%, respectively.

The Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants,including minimum tangible net worth, restrictions on
funded debt and interest coverage. The credit facilities also restrict the amount of dividends the Company can pay as well as the
amount of common stock that the Company can repurchase annually. At December 30,2000, the Company was in compliance
with these covenants.

On June 9, 1998,the Company sold $1,330,000 aggregate principal amount at maturity of its Zero Coupon Convertible
Senior Debentures (“Debentures”) due 2018 in a private placement.The Company subsequently registered the resale of these
Debentures with the SEC and they are now generally saleable under Rule 144.The Debentures were sold at an issue price of
$346.18 per $1,000 principal amount at maturity (representing a yield to maturity of 5.375% per annum), and are convertible
into shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock at a rate of 5.495 shares per $1,000 principal amount at maturity, subject to
adjustment under certain circumstances. Gross proceeds from the offering were $460,400. In 2000 and 1999, the Company repur-
chased Debentures with a total carrying value of $235,219 and $56,504, respectively, as of their repurchase dates for approximately
$231,330 and $50,321 in cash, respectively. The Debenture repurchases resulted in extraordinary gains of $2,420 and $3,778 in
2000 and 1999, respectively, net of $§1,469 and $2,405 in income taxes, respectively. At December 30, 2000 and January 1,2000,
the carrying value of the outstanding Debentures was $220,035 and $440,943, respectively.

At December 30, 2000, the outstanding Debentures were convertible into approximately 3.1 million shares of the Company’s
Class A Common Stock.The Debentures are redeemable at the option of the Company on or after June 9,2003 at the issue price
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plus accrued original issue discount to the date of redemption.Each Debenture is subject to repurchase at the option of the holder,
as of June 9, 2001, June 9, 2003,June 9, 2008,and June 9, 2013, or if there is a Fundamental Change (as defined), at the issue

price plus accrued original issue discount to the date of the redemption.In the event of a repurchase at the option of the holder

(other than upon a Fundamental Change), the Company may, at its option, satisfy the redemption in cash or Class A Common

Stock,or any combination thereof. In the case of any such repurchase as of June 9, 2001,the Company may elect, in lieu of the

payment of cash or Class A Common Stock, to satisfy the redemption by the issuance of new Zero Coupon Convertible Senior

Debentures due 2018.

The Company has additional lines of credit, commercial paper, short-term overdraft facilities, and other credit facilities with

various financial institutions worldwide which aggregated $751,640 and $859,024 at December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000,

respectively. Most of these arrangements are on an uncommitted basis and are reviewed periodically for renewal. At December 30,
2000 and January 1, 2000,the Company had $250,099 and $403,655, respectively, outstanding under these facilities. The weighted

average interest rate on the outstanding borrowings under these credit facilities was 6.67% and 5.25% at December 30,2000 and

January 1, 2000, respectively.

Other long-term debt, excluding the convertible debentures, consists of the following:

Fiscal Year End

2000 1999

Revolving Credit facilities $ 75,484 $ 503,537
Commercial paper 29,577 155,470
Overdraft facilities 42,774 31,020
Other 177,748 217,165
325,583 907,192

Current maturities of other long-term debt (42,774) (31,020)
$ 282,809 $ 876,172

Annual maturities of other long-term debt as of December 30, 2000,excluding the convertible debentures, are as follows:

2001 $ 42,774
2002 282,809
$ 325,583
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Note 8§ — Income taxes

The components of income before taxes and extraordinary item consist of the following:

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998
United States $ 332,241 $ 275,013 $ 350,631
Foreign 30,268 15,480 56,229
Total $ 362,509 $ 290,493 $ 406,360

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

Fiscal Year

2000 1999 1998
Current:

Federal $ 55,038 $ 62,832 $ 111,862
State 4,626 8 15,146
Foreign 28,335 25,488 31,145
87,999 88,328 158,153

Deferred:
Federal 56,130 27,867 4,057
State 6,115 7,832 6,926
Foreign (11,488) (13,175) (7,451)
50,757 22,524 3,532
Total income tax provision $ 138,756 $ 110,852 $ 161,685

Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s net deferred

tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Fiscal Year
2000 1999
Net deferred tax assets and (liabilities):
Tax in excess of book basis of foreign operations $ 50,983 $ 37,466
Items not currently taxable (121,514) (31,045)
Depreciation (13,351) (25,485)
Tax credit carryforwards 26,301 23,525
(57,581) 4,461
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities (10,801) (227,248)
Total 3 (68,382) 3 (222,787)

Net current deferred tax assets of $26,297 and $51,460 are included in other current assets at December 30,2000 and
January 1, 2000, respectively. Net non-current deferred tax liabilities of $§94,679 and $274,247 are included in other liabilities at
December 30, 2000 and January 1, 2000, respectively.
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Reconciliation of the statutory U.S.federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective tax rate is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998
U.S. statutory rate 35% 35% 35%
State income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 3 3 4
Foreign rates in excess of statutory rate 1 — 1
Other (1) = =
Effective tax rate 38% 38% 40%

At December 30,2000, the Company had foreign net operating tax loss carryforwards of approximately $166,000 of which
approximately $146,000 has no expiration date. The remaining foreign net operating tax loss carryforwards expire through the
year 2010.

The Company does not provide for income taxes on undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries as such earnings are intended

to be permanently reinvested in those operations.

Note 9 — Commitments and contingencies
There are various claims, lawsuits and pending actions against the Company incident to the Company’s operations. It is the
opinion of management that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s finan-

cial position or results of operations.

The Company has arrangements with certain finance companies that provide accounts receivable and inventory financing facili-
ties for its customers. In conjunction with certain of these arrangements, the Company has agreements with the finance companies
that would require it to repurchase certain inventory which might be repossessed from the customers by the finance companies.

Such repurchases have been insignificant to date.
The Company leases the majority of its facilities and certain equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Renewal and
urchase options at fair values exist for a substantial portion of the leases. Rental expense for the years ended 2000,1999, and
p P P p y ) 5

1998 was $102,334, $82,781, and $55,906, respectively.

Future minimum rental commitments on operating leases that have remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year

as of December 30, 2000 were as follows:

2001 S 64,182
2002 54,478
2003 45,944
2004 42,599
2005 4,714
Thereafter 229,067

$ 477,984
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Note 10 — Segment information

The Company operates predominantly in a single industry segment as a distributor of information technology products and
services. The Company’s reportable operating segments are based on geographic location, and the measure of segment profit is
income from operations. The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. Geographic areas in which the Company operates include the United States,Europe (Austria, Belgium,
Denmark, Finland,France, Germany, Hungary, Italy, The Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, and
the United Kingdom) and Other international (Australia, China,India, Malaysia, New Zealand, Singapore, Thailand, Canada,
Argentina, Brazil,Chile, Mexico, and Peru).Inter-geographic sales primarily represent intercompany sales which are accounted for

based on established sales prices between the related companies and are eliminated in consolidation.

Financial information by geographic segments is as follows:

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998
Net Sales:
United States
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 18,452,069 $ 16,813,414 $ 14,393,295
Inter-geographic sales 192,339 183,208 163,199
Europe 7,472,266 7,344,142 5,624,074
Other International 4,790,814 3,911,086 2,016,669
Eliminations of inter-geographic sales (192,339) (183,208) (163,199)
Total $ 30,715,149 $ 28,068,642 $ 22,034,038
Income From Operations:
United States $ 279,457 S 143,496 S 397,194
Europe 51,104 19,118 62,172
Other International 22,876 37,390 27,239
Total S 353,437 $ 200,004 $ 486,605
Identifiable Assets:
United States $ 4,083,399 $ 5,827,382 $ 3,939,573
Europe 1,514,109 1,644,354 2,051,827
Other International 1,011,474 800,191 742,004
Total $ 6,608,982 $ 8,271,927 S 6,733,404
Capital Expenditures:
United States $ 97,965 $ 93,059 $ 119,838
Europe 34,839 27,192 19,109
Other International 13,300 15,009 4,289
Total $ 146,104 $ 135,260 $ 143,236
Depreciation and Amortization:
United States $ 66,165 S 54,819 S 44,067
Europe 22,077 23,668 15,904
Other International 20,268 19,114 7,971
Total $ 108,510 3 97,601 3 67,942
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Note 11 — Stock options and incentive plans

The Company adopted the disclosure requirements of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (“FAS 123”) in 1996.
As permitted by FAS 123, the Company continues to measure compensation cost in accordance with APB 25 and related interpretations.
Therefore, the adoption of FAS 123 had no impact on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. Had compensation cost
for the Company’s stock option plans been determined based on the fair value of the options consistent with the method of FAS 123, the

Company’s net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998
Net Income As reported $ 226,173 $ 183,419 $ 245,175
Pro forma $ 183,117 $ 152,789 $ 225,772
Diluted earnings per share As reported $ 1.52 $ 1.24 $ 1.64
Pro forma $ 1.23 $ 1.03 $ 1.51

The weighted average fair value per option granted in 2000, 1999, and 1998 for pro forma disclosure was $5.00,$7.66, and
$16.54, respectively. The fair value of options was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model assuming no dividends

and using the following weighted average assumptions:

Fiscal Year
2000 1999 1998
Risk-free interest rate 6.30% 5.45% 5.01%
Expected years until exercise 2.2 years 2.7 years 4.0 years
Expected stock volatility 59.2% 55.5% 57.4%

Rollover stock option plan

Certain of the Company’s employees participated in the qualified and non-qualified stock option and stock appreciation right
(“SAR”) plans of the Company’s former parent,Ingram Industries Inc. (“Industries”).In conjunction with the Company’s split-off
from Industries, Industries options and SARs held by the Company’s employees and certain other Industries options,SARs and
Incentive Stock Units (“ISUs”) were converted to or exchanged for Ingram Micro options (“Rollover Stock Options”).
Approximately 11.0 million Rollover Stock Options were outstanding immediately following the conversion.The majority of the

Rollover Stock Options were fully vested by the year 2000 and no such options expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Equity incentive plans

In 1999, the Company had two existing equity incentive plans,the 1996 and 1998 Equity Incentive Plans. Effective June 2000,
the Company’s Board of Directors and Stockholders adopted the 2000 Equity Incentive Plan. The 1996, 1998 and 2000 Plans (col-
lectively called “the Equity Incentive Plans”) provide for the granting of stock based awards including incentive stock options,non-
qualified stock options, restricted stock,and stock appreciation rights, among others,to key employees and members of the
Company’s Board of Directors. Under the three plans, the Company’s board of directors authorized 47.0 million shares to be made
available for granting. As of December 30, 2000,20.4 million shares were available for granting. Options granted under the Equity
Incentive Plans were issued at exercise prices ranging from $7.00 to $53.56 per share and have expiration dates not longer than 10
years. The options granted generally vest over a period of one to five years. In October 1999, the Company also granted a total of
272,250 shares of restricted Class A Common Stock to certain executives under the 1998 Plan. These shares have no purchase price
and vest ratably over a two year period. The Company recorded unearned compensation of $3,458 as a component of stockholders’
equity. The unearned compensation is amortized and charged to operations over the vesting period. In 2000,38,000 shares of the

restricted Class A Common Stock were forfeited.
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A summary of activity under the Company’s stock option plans is presented below:

Weighted
Shares Average
(000's) Exercise Price

Outstanding at January 3, 1998 18,033 $ 9.89
Stock options granted during the year 2,709 32.52
Stock options exercised (4,992) 7.29
Forfeitures (569) 8.12
Outstanding at January 2, 1999 15,181 14.85
Stock options granted during the year 7,833 18.45
Stock options exercised (1,674) 4.42
Forfeitures (2,297) 24.06
Outstanding at January 1, 2000 19,043 16.90
Stock options granted during the year 10,016 13.52
Stock options exercised (1,621) 6.41
Forfeitures (3,031) 19.01
Outstanding at December 30, 2000 24,407 $ 15.93

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 30,2000.

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted Weighted
Number Average Average Number Weighted
Range of Exercise Outstanding Remaining Outstanding Exercisable at Average

Prices at 12/30/00 (000’s) Life Price 12/30/00(000’s) Exercise Price
$0.68—$ 3.32 1,956 1.8 S 2.13 1,931 $ 2.13
$7.00 1,487 33 7.00 1,045 7.00
$10.63—517.44 12,652 9.1 13.24 2,312 12.58
$18.00—%27.00 5,114 4.9 19.81 4,302 19.22
$27.06—%38.63 2,616 5.5 29.72 1,058 29.63
$41.69—%53.56 582 6.0 47.54 285 47.60
24,407 $ 15.93 10,933 $ 15.38
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Stock options exercisable totaled approximately 10,933,000;7,260,000; and 4,717,000 at December 30,2000, January 1,
2000,and January 2, 1999, respectively, at weighted average exercise prices of $15.38, $13.42,and $10.29, respectively.



Key employee stock purchase plan

As of April 30, 1996, the Company adopted the Key Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) which pro-
vides for the issuance of up to 4,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock to certain employees. In June 1996, the Company
offered 2,775,000 shares of its Class B Common Stock for sale to certain employees pursuant to the Stock Purchase Plan, and sub-
sequently sold 2,510,400 shares at $7.00 per share with aggregate proceeds of approximately $17,573.The shares sold thereby
were subject to certain restrictions on transfer and to repurchase by the Company at the original offering price upon termination of
employment prior to certain specified vesting dates. The Company has repurchased 248,170 of such shares. All remaining shares are

fully vested.

Employee stock purchase plans

In 1996 and 1998, the Board of Directors and the Company’s shareholders approved Employee Stock Purchase Plans (the
“1996 and 1998 ESPP Plans”) under which 1,000,000 and 3,000,000 shares, respectively, of the Company’s Class A Common Stock
could be sold to employees. Under the Plans,employees can elect to have between 1% and 6% of their earnings withheld to be
applied to the purchase of these shares. The purchase price under the Plans is generally the lesser of the market price on the begin-
ning or ending date of the offering periods under such Plans. On December 31, 1998,the 1996 ESPP terminated and the offering
period was completed for all 1996 ESPP offerings. In January 1999, the Company issued 582,362 of the 1,000,000 authorized
shares and converted approximately $12,500 in accrued employee contributions into stockholders’ equity. Under the 1998 Plan,
offerings were made both in January and June of 2000 and 1999.The 2000 and 1999 offerings ended on December 31, 2000 and
1999, respectively. In January 2001 and 2000, the Company issued approximately 138,000 and 145,000, respectively, of the autho-
rized shares and converted approximately $1,600 and $1,900, respectively, in accrued employee contributions into stockholders’

equity as a result.

Employee benefit plans
The Company’s employee benefit plans permit eligible employees to make contributions up to certain limits which are

matched by the Company at stipulated percentages. The Company’s contributions charged to expense were $4,530 in 2000, $4,484
in 1999, and $3,314 in 1998.

Note 12 — Common stock

The Company has two classes of Common Stock,consisting of 265,000,000 authorized shares of $0.01 par value Class A
Common Stock and 135,000,000 authorized shares of $0.01 par value Class B Common Stock, and 1,000,000 authorized shares of
$0.01 par value Preferred Stock.Class A stockholders are entitled to one vote on each matter to be voted on by the stockholders
whereas Class B stockholders are entitled to ten votes on each matter to be voted on by the stockholders. The two classes of stock
have the same rights in all other respects. Each share of Class B Common Stock may at any time be converted to a share of Class A
Common Stock; however, conversion will occur automatically on the earliest to occur of (1) November 1, 2001; (2) the sale or
transfer of such share of Class B Common Stock to any person not specifically authorized to hold such shares by the Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation; or (3) the date on which the number of shares of Class B Common Stock then outstanding represents

less than 25% of the aggregate number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock then outstanding,
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The detail of changes in the number of issued and outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock, and

Redeemable Class B Common Stock for the three year period ended December 30,2000, is as follows:

Common Stock

Class B
Class A (lass B Redeemable

January 3, 1998 37,366,389 97,344,272 2,370,400
Stock options exercised 4,992,264
Repurchase of Redeemable Class B Common Stock (92,900)
Conversion of Class B Common Stock

to Class A Common Stock 24,162,062 (24,162,062)
Vesting of Redeemable Class B Common Stock 1,161,250 (1,161,250)
January 2, 1999 66,520,715 74,343,460 1,116,250
Stock options exercised 1,673,621
Repurchase of Redeemable Class B Common Stock (15,270)
Conversion of Class B Common Stock

to Class A Common Stock 2,163,569 (2,163,569)
Vesting of Redeemable Class B Common Stock 558,125 (558,125)
Issuance of Class A Common stock Related

to Employee Stock Purchase Plan 582,362
Grant of restricted Class A Common Stock 272,250
January 1, 2000 71,212,517 72,738,016 542,855
Stock options exercised 1,620,890
Repurchase of Redeemable Class B CommonStock (12,657)
Conversion of Class B Common Stock

to Class A Common Stock 2,858,408 (2,858,408)
Vesting of Redeemable Class B Common Stock 530,198 (530,198)
Issuance of Class A Common Stock Related

to Employee Stock Purchase Plan 144,300
Forfeiture of restricted Class A Common Stock (38,000)
December 30, 2000 75,798,115 70,409,806 =
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Management’s statement of financial responsiblity

Management is responsible for the integrity of the financial information contained in this annual report,including the
Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples and include amounts based upon management’s informed estimates and judgments.

Management believes it maintains an effective system of internal accounting controls, including an internal audit program, that
is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that assets are safeguarded and that accounting records provide a reli-
able basis for the preparation of financial statements. This system is continuously reviewed,improved and modified in response to
changing business conditions and operations and recommendations made by the independent accountants and internal auditors.
Management believes that the accounting and control systems provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and financial

information is reliable.

The Company’s Bylaws provide that a majority of members of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors shall be
Independent Directors who are not employees of the Company. The Audit Committee is currently comprised entirely of
Independent Directors. The Audit Committee represents the shareowners and the Board of Directors on matters relating to corpo-
rate accounting, financial reporting, internal accounting control and auditing including the ongoing assessment of the activities of
the independent accountants and internal auditors. The independent accountants and internal auditors advise the Audit Committee
of significant findings and recommendations arising from their activities and have free access to the Audit Committee, with or with-

out the presence of management.

Ko B Foeo W fil) ) S

Kent B. Foster Michael J. Grainger
Chairman of the Board and President, Chief Operating Officer and
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Report of independent accountants

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Ingram Micro Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity and cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Ingram Micro Inc. and its subsidiaries at
December 30, 2000 and January 1,2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 30,2000 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management;our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion.

&LMJMM@CUWW LLP

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Orange County, California
February 28, 2001
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Boardof | Directors

Kent B. Foster

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,

Ingram Micro Inc.

Don H. Davis, Jr.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,

Rockwell International Corporation

John R. Ingram

Vice Chairman,

Ingram Industries Inc.

Martha R. Ingram

Chairman of the Board,

Ingram Industries Inc.

Orrin H. Ingram Il

President and Chief Executive Officer,

Ingram Industries Inc.

Philip M. Pfeffer

President and Chief Executive Officer,

Treemont Capital Inc.

Gerhard Schulmeyer

President and Chief Executive Officer,

Siemens Corporation

Joe B. Wyatt

Chancellor Emeritus,

Vanderbilt University

CO rp ora te ] Management

Kent B. Foster
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Michael J. Grainger
President, Chief Operating Officer
and Chief Financial Officer

Guy P. Abramo
Executive Vice President
and Chief Strategy and Information Officer

James E. Anderson, Jr.
Senior Vice President,Secretary and General Counsel

David M. Finley

Senior Vice President,Human Resources

James F. Ricketts
Corporate Vice President and Treasurer

Re g | ona I ] Management

Kevin M. Murai
Executive Vice President and President,
Ingram Micro UL.S.

Gregory M. E. Spierkel
Executive Vice President and President,
Ingram Micro Europe

Asger Falstrup
Senior Vice President and President,
Ingram Micro Canada

Henri T. Koppen
Senior Vice President and President,
Ingram Micro Asia-Pacific

Jorge G. Reyes
Vice President Finance and Accounting
and Acting President, Ingram Micro Latin America



corporate OfﬁceS] Ingram Micro Inc. Common Stock ] The Class A Common Stock of Ingram Micro

1600 E. St. Andrew Place is traded on the New York Stock Exchange
Santa Ana, CA 92705 under the symbol IM.
Phone: 714.566.1000 Price Range of Class A Common Stock
Fiscal 1999 HIGH Low
A I Meeti i First Quarter $ 36.31 $ 16.13
nnua eeling ] The 2001 Annual Meeting of Shareowners Second Quarter 31.75 20.50
will be held at 10 a.m. (Eastern time) Third Quarter 33.88 12.56
Fourth Quarter 15.44 10.00
Friday, June 1, 2001, at Ingram Micro Inc.,
Fiscal 2000 HIGH Low
1740 Wehrle Drive, Williamsville, NY. First Quarter $ 16.00 $ 10.50
Shareowners are cordially invited to attend. Second Quarter 21.13 13.00
Third Quarter 20.75 13.13
Fourth Quarter 18.38 10.19
Transfer Ag ent ] First Chicago Trust Company of New York
& Reqistrar A Division of EquiServe Shareowner ] Requests for information may be sent
Post Office Box 2500 |ani[ieS to the Investor Relations Department at
Jersey City, NJ 07303-2500 our corporate offices.

Phone: 201.324.1644 Investor Relations telephone

information line: 714.382.8282

Independent] PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Investor Relations e-mail address:

Accountants 2020 Main Street, Suite 400 investor.relations@ingrammicro.com

Irvine, CA 92614 Additional information also is available on our

Phone: 949.437.5200 Web site: WWW.ingrammicro.com/corp.

i 7 Worldwide ] 1. Kent B. Foster Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
1 2 _ Executive
3wy (s Team

2. Michael ). Grainger President, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer
3. Guy P. Abramo Executive Vice President and Chief Strategy and Information Officer
4. Kevin M. Murai Executive Vice President and President, Ingram Micro U.S.
i - 5. Gregory M. E. Spierkel Executive Vice President and President, Ingram Micro Europe
-
L e . 6. James E. Anderson, Jr. Senior Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel
7. Asger Falstrup Senior Vice President and President, Ingram Micro Canada
8. David M. Finley Senior Vice President, Human Resources
9

| . Henri T. Koppen Senior Vice President and President, Ingram Micro Asia-Pacific
= ) 10. Jorge G. Reyes Vice President and Acting President, Ingram Micro Latin America
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